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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Announcement of 2013 final results 25 March 2014
AGM 2014 10 June 2014
Ex-dividend date for 2013 final dividend [3 June 2014
Despatch of dividend warrants on or about 26 June 2014
Announcement of 2014 interim results (tentative) August 2014
Announcement of 2014 final results (tentative) March 2015

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2014 (“AGM 2014”)

The AGM 2014 will be held on Tuesday, 10 June 2014. The notice of the AGM 2014,
which constitutes part of the circular to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”),
is sent together with this Annual Report to Shareholders. This Annual Report, the circular
to Shareholders, the notice of the AGM 2014 and the proxy form are also available on
the Stock Exchange's website (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company's website
(http://www.5100.net).

Summary of 2013 fi(me of the shares of the Company.

2013FARAARMDIRE—E
MONTH HIGH MONTH LOW
HK!

- $ * %HE® T HARE
i 2.84 310 235 2.80 2.90 3.00 3.09 3.20 3.05 3.04 3.02 3.20
3.00
2.50
2.00
1.50

253 195 2.06 2.29 252 2.53 2.82 2.86 2.88 2.90 2.70 2.89
1.00

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Summary of 20 3 turnover of the shares of the Company

2013F AR A D AR
HK$ mllllun 2 No. of shares (m\H\on) _a turnover
ROBE(R BXEHE

BR)
3““‘70 7 o 274280 | 0000

250,000 250000

200000 200000
a7
150000 ) 150000
g
100000 I 100000
9B

8 |

50,000 50,000

| [ ] - It

m. = B m P

o 53076 122,124 373% 38951 92315 32921 49081 54475 37406 42838 38491 %0988
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Source: Bloomberg

BRRR : 218
° TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD. ® 751007k &JR1ZER B R 2 &

B RR

WI3FEEFEEERE 20143 A25H
WI4FRREFAES 20146 A 108

2013FRERE 20146 R 138
BrREBH
BREREE 2014F 6 426 H
(kAR )
D204 FHEAEE 2014 8 A
(&%)
D014 FEFHEE 20153 A
(&%)

WI4ERRAFERE(2014FERRAE
X&)l
WAFRRAFRAEEN_E—NE A+

B(EHZ)RT - 04FRFAFRGEAS
N BALRRBEEA - ZBKERANFR
B—HEFETRRE - NFH - REABE -
W4 FERRAFAGRERRKREEREN
B B R BT A U (http://www.hkexnews.hk)
R AR R #BUE (http://Awww.5100.net) ©

March 38 2014

17 18 19 20 21 2 23
24 @) 26 27 28 29 30
31

QO KeyDate EERH

June 68 2014

We Th Fr

2 3 4 5O@® 7 s
® @ n 12 13 14 15
16 ()

23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

=
N
N

O Key Date EERH



STAKEHOLDERS INFORMATION
B AEH

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining Shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM 2014:

Latest time to lodge transfer 4:30p.m. on 4 June 2014
documents for registration
Closure of register of members 5to 10 June 2014

(both dates inclusive)

Record date 10 June 2014

For determining Shareholders’ entitlement

to the final dividend:

Latest time to lodge transfer 4:30p.m. on 16 June 2014
documents for registration
Closure of register of members |7 to 20 June 2014

(both dates inclusive)

Record date 20 June 2014

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Phone: +852 2862 8628

Fax: +852 2865 0990
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5100 GLACIAL WATER

Through Tibet Glacier Mineral Water Co., Ltd. (“Tibet Glacier Mineral Water"), we
produce a leading brand in the fast-growing premium bottled mineral water market in
China. We have positioned our “5100" brand as a premium brand by emphasizing the

uniqueness and purity of our glacial spring mineral water, which is sourced from a unique

glacial spring at 5,100 meters above sea
level. Our 5100 Tibet Glacial Spring Water
("5100 Glacial Water") originates from the
deep, naturally rising underground glacial
spring immersed in the Nianging Donggula
Mountains in Tibet, one of the world's
most remote, pristine and untraversed
locations and bottled in close proximity
to the water source. In addition, our
water source is a natural spring, where
water comes to the surface from deep
underground. All these advantages provide
our water source with natural protection
against potential contamination and

pollution.

The mineral and microelement content of our product meets both the PRC New
National Standard and European Union standards for natural mineral water and our
production process is designed to preserve the natural qualities of our water source. We
adhere to a strict quality control system in every stage of our operation process, from the

sourcing of the water to processing, packaging, transportation and storage, with a view to

ensuring the highest quality standards.

Tibet 5100 Water Resources Holdings Ltd.

(“Tibet 5100”) (Stock Code: I115), listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), is an investment

holding company with the vision of achieving long term sustainable returns for

its shareholders and creating prime capital value.

Tibet 5100’s operating subsidiaries and business activities are principally

located in China. Tibet 5100 has two core business lines, namely,

manufacturing and sales of 5100 Glacial Water and highland barley beer.
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HIGHLAND BARLEY BEER BREE

Tibet Tiandi Green Beverage Development Co., Ltd (“Tiandi Green") is principally ARAEERRERARA (X
engaged in the exploration, manufacture and sales of a Tibetan Plateau specialty highland BHEIEXBRETRERE £ERHEER

barley beer, which is unique, in the
PRC. With its three production lines
imported from Germany, Tiandi Green
is able to manufacture products including
bottled and canned beer, with an annual
production capacity of up to 200,000
tons. Tibet is one of the main areas for
growing highland barley in the PRC, while
highland barley is the main grain crop in
Tibet. Highland barley beer is brewed
using premium Tibetan green highland
barley and unpolluted spring water sourced
from Tibet. In 2010, highland barley beer
from Tibet became the official beer for
celebration activities during the Shanghai
World Expo.

BRIEF CORPORATE STRUCTURE (as at 3| December 2013)
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY -1 111

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 3401, 34th Floor, China Resources Building

No. 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, |7th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KYI-1111

Cayman Islands

WEBSITES TO ACCESS COMPANY INFORMATION*

http://www.5100.net
http://www.hkexnews.hk

STOCK CODE ON MAIN BOARD OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE

115

4 contents of the websites do not form part in this Annual Report
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEHREE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the Annual Report of Tibet 5100 Water
Resources Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and together with
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 3| December
2013.

During the past year, China's high-end consumer goods market was facing serious”

pressure. However, amid such a challenging operating environment, we were able to
strengthen the leading position of our flagship product, 5100 Glacial Water, in China’s
premium bottled mineral water market. Moreover, the quality of our product is now
starting to be recognized internationally following our triumph at the [0th Global Bottled
Water Congress, where we won the “Best Still or Sparkling Water" award. The news
was widely reported by renowned media such as Bloomberg, Wall Street Select and the
National Broadcasting Company (NBC). During the past year, we have also achieved a
year-on-year rise in both revenue and profit for Tiandi Green and its highland barley beer.

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2013 reached RMB787 million,
representing an increase of 5% from 2012, and profit attributable to owners of the
Company increased by 7% to RMB441 million. The board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK8 cents per share (which
is equivalent to RMB6.3 cents per share) to the Shareholders of the Company. The total
expected dividend payout is RMBI62 million. The remaining retained earning as at 3|
December 2013 was approximately RMB9 12 million.

AMID MARKET CHALLENGES, CONTINUE IMPLEMENTING THREE
MARKETING STRATEGIES

In 2013, China's economic growth rate hit a record low in the past 4 years, thus
presenting enormous challenges to the domestic market for high-end consumer goods.
Despite pressure from the market, we have responded to the challenges well by
strengthening our advantages in products and services. In terms of sales and marketing,
the Group continued to implement our three marketing strategies to ensure steady
development in operation and performance. During the year, the Group continued to
maintain stable cooperative relationships with railway transportation service providers,
airlines and other institutional customers, and furthermore, we also won purchasing
mandates from new institutional customers such as Shenzhen Airlines, Shandong Airlines
and Okay Airways.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Through event sponsorship such as government conferences, business and sports events,
our products and brands gained direct and effective exposure to government and business
customers. 5100 Glacial Water became the official drinking water for a number of major
events such as the National People's Congress, the Chinese People's Political Consultative
Conference, the Summer Davos Forum, the Caijing Magazine's annual conference, and the
Global Automotive Forum. We also sponsored a number of golf tournaments including
the Hainan Golden Coconut Golf Open, under the slogan “Natural Green Life, 5100-
GOLF". We believe these sponsorships will increase our brand awareness among our
targeted customers.

As for the retail segment, we organized a series of targeted and localized events with
retailers including department stores, supermarkets, shopping malls, hotels, restaurants,
and night clubs to enhance consumers’ understanding of our brand philosophy and
increase our product awareness. For example, we partnered with retailers to host events
such as “Searching for the Heart of the Glacier’, “Go Tibet when your heart is thirsty”
and “Journey to discover Tibet's mysteries”. These activities successfully resonated with
our consumers and deepened our brand recognition.

FOLLOWING CONSUMER TRENDS, DEVELOP E-COMMERCE CHANNEL

Year 2013 marked a milestone for China's e-commerce. According to the statistics from
China's Ministry of Commerce, China became the largest online retail market by volume,
with online retail sales of more than RMBI.8 trillion and a total tumover in the e-commerce
sector of over RMBIO trillion, ahead of the previous market leader, the United States.
During the year, we made significant progress in the e-commerce business, as more
and more consumers tend to purchase consumer products online. By the end of 2013,
customers are able to purchase bottled water redemption card (“Water Card") on many
famous domestic online shopping websites as well as to purchase and redeem Water
Cards on our official website. Furthermore, we also launched mobile App to provide
customers with an easy way to redeem Water Cards and receive news updates.

“On The Common Ground While Reserving Differences”

ACQUIRED TIANDI GREEN AND DIVERSIFIED REVENUE SOURCES

In 2013, the Group completed the acquisition of a controlling interests in Tiandi Green,
and added the premium and unique highland barley beer to our product offering. In 2013,
Tiandi Green developed rapidly with a consolidated revenue contribution of RMBI39
million, accounting for 18% of the Group's total revenue during the year, which broadened
our sources of revenue, reduced our reliance on a single product and promoted our
product diversification. There are significant synergies between 5100 Glacial Water and
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highland barley beer, which can not only enhance our competitive edges, but also help us
to consolidate our market leading position and strengthen our brand image. In the future,
we are hoping to leverage our logistics network and marketing resources to help Tiandi
Green increase its market share and to diversify our revenue sources.

CORPORATE HONORS AND BRAND RECOGNITION

On the corporate level, The Economic Observer of Beijing and the Hong Kong
Management Association presented Tibet 5100 with their “Award for Outstanding
Marketing in China" based on our “zero-distance value system”. In early 2014, Tibet 5100
ranked No. 7 among Forbes China’s Top 100 Publicly Traded Small Businesses. In addition
to the aforementioned “Best Still or Sparkling Water" award presented by the Global
Battled Water Congress, 5100 Glacial Water also won “Bing Hun Award" and “Mei Hua
Xue Award" presented by the 4th China International High-end Bottled Drinking Water
Expo.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

We always insist a strong sense of responsibility towards our community. As an enterprise
based in Tibet, we commit to improve the employment and livelihood of local Tibetan
residents, in order to support the country's policy of supporting Tibet. We are also
actively involved in various charitable and community activities. As one of the founding
partners of the Samaranch Sports Development Fund, we sponsored the Olympic Day
Run and participated in the 23rd National Fund Raising Campaign for disabled persons in
2013.

“-we will continue to develop and
strengthen in a prudent and sustainable manner.”

OUTLOOK

Looking into 2014, we anticipate China's high-end consumer goods sector to remain
under pressure from the market and external environment. In the long-run, however, we
firmly believe that the challenges will facilitate the healthy and sustainable development
of China's high-end consumer product industry. As income rises and health consideration
among domestic consumers heightens, reputable brands and health related products
are expected to achieve greater consumption. Therefore, premium water will still enjoy
an enormous growth potential. In the future, we expect to keep focusing on our three
major marketing strategies of “5100 Glacial Water”, which are to maintain the strong
relationship with and generate more sales from our institutional customers, open up more
retail channels, and on the e-commerce front, expand our use of e-commerce platforms
and Water Cards in order to embrace the growth of online sales.
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The group will accelerate the construction of glass bottling line of 5100 Glacial Water
and expects to launch our new products in glass bottles within 2014, to enhance product
identity and develop overseas markets. We will capitalize on our strengths in product
transportation network and sales and marketing in order to maximize the synergy
between the water business and beer business and boost beer sales in regions outside
Tibet. Leveraging our experiences in the high-end consumer goods market and our
management's knowledge in the beer sector, we are confident in building our highland
barley beer brand a remarkable success step by step. Furthermore, the Group will also
continue to search for new beverage products with Chinese characteristics to diversify
our product offering and further expand our business in order to achieve sustainable
development and growth.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to management
and staff for their dedication to the Company during the past year. | would also like to
extend my thanks to all shareholders, acquaintances in the banking and investment sectors
and business partners for their ongoing support.

Yu Yiping Wallace
Chairman

25 March 2014
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
HEHE

Year ended 3| Décember

g .  BEt-A=t-RILEE

o
’ 2013 2012 Change
—2-=F —T-CF 2
Revenue (RMB million) WR(ARBEET) 787 682 [ 15%
Profit attributable to the owners RATHEE AEGNE
of the Company (RMB million) (ANE¥BE&ET) 441 411 1 7%
Eamings per share FREM
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) - EXREFE(ARED) 17.18 15.99 1 7%
Sales Volume (in tonnes) HES (W) 103,120 83,846 1 23%
Gross profit margin ERE 73% 81% | 10%
Average selling price per tonne (RMB'000) FI9BMEB(ARETT) 7.6 8.l | 6%
As at 3|1 December
Rt=R=t+—-8H
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—fF
(RMB million) (RMB million) Change
(AR¥BEER) (AR%B&ET) 28
Total assets BEEHRE 3,257 2,643 [ 23%
Equity attributable
to owners of the Company RATHEA AEIRES 2,497 2,202 1 13%

° TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD. @ F& #5100k &RIZER B R D &



HIGHLIGHTS

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Revenue (RMB million) (RMB million)
WAARBEEET) NAEBEAEEFEAREES

o) CEER. o | EZER

Earnings per share-basic and diluted (RMB cents) Sales volume (in tonnes)
FRAEM - EAREEARED HERE (M)

zonl o] CZCER

Gross profit margin (%)
EFE (%)

o .-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B8 5 i B2 7 #7

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2013, we continued our endeavors in supplying high quality products and premium

services to our clients, and as such, the operating performance of the Group was further

enhanced.

We emphasized the following four aspects in developing the mineral water and highland

barley beer business of the Group in the high-end specialty beverage industry:

£ 46

E-T—=F BAREBNREPRHER
mEMERNBENRYE < EEMNE @
KRB ARG AR EIRTT -

AEERUEREATEET ER ST ER
MEXT  BRBRKEEREBES :

MR M ERED  EEREND
BBEF BHERSRAEREEFH
HE UMBTEHERE(HE=T
FBER)NER  SNENERBEHE
HHERMANERNEE  BRE

() to strengthen our traditional advantages, continuous development of new -
institutional clients and endeavor to maintain the sales volume from existing
institutional clients, as well as to accelerate our expansion of retail sales channels
(owned by third parties) and endeavor to increase the relevant number of

distributors, distributing cities and outlets and increasing the sales capacity of each

outlet; MBS B TTERAE 1)
(2)  to develop our innovative business and to strengthen our e-commerce platform for =~ B & 3 A0 BIFT 3 7% K 0o B M A 1E

ERHERFKIBR(KR) RRK
PNERMRINEFHBETE

selling Water Card and our products online;

(3)  toincrease our advertising and promotional activities and branding publicity; and = NMRESHEEIHNREEE &
(4)  toimprove our productivity and quality control management. M TELEGENNERNMITERE -
Although under keen competitive environment, the share of revenue in our retail channel = ZF - BARAERRBFN

RIR
distribution of our mineral water business segment successfully maintained at 28% in 2013 ®r 31)3}5%%1@%6)%%*%%%% NZEE
WAERMEMA L RN E T —

AR #)28% °

%;E
—F

which is the same as the share of revenue in 2012,

RABRKEEDHNTEHERE(HE
SHMER)BERRART T _FF
the Company (“Annual Report 2012") to 86 cities as at 31 December 2013. The number B ZZ——FFR]) BT —@EHH
of distributors increased from 190 as at the date of the Annual Report 2012 to 228 as at BER-_Z—=F+-A=1+—HA0N\+~X
31 December 2013, and the number of sales outlets increased from 6,634 as at the date R T A8 fﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ(%ﬁﬁ’\\_ ——FFHRA
of Annual Report 2012 to 8,053 as at 3| December 2013 H—BATEENER=_T—=F+=H
E%*H%_§_+ﬂﬁ:§%%%%%m
RIZE-—FFHRAMNNTRNE =T HEE
MER-T—=F+-A=T—-ANNTE
At=f#-

The scope of our retail sales channel (owned by third parties) of our mineral water

business segment was extended from 61 cities as at the date of the annual report 2012 of
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In 2013, we acquired an additional 30% of the equity interests of Tiandi Green after we
acquired 35% of which in December 2012, and obtained control over it. Highland barley
beer of Tiandi Green was sold within and outside of Tibet Autonomous Region. In 2013,
the share of relevant revenue from sales of our highland barley beer within and outside of

Tibet Autonomous Region was 86% and 4%, respectively.

The share of our 5100 Glacial Water Water Card business in total revenue of our mineral
water business segment decreased from 7% in 2012 to 3% in 2013, but has still been
one of our major sources of profit growth in the innovative businesses. For enhancing our
e-commerce sales platform and boosting up future sales, we have developed our self-
operated e-commerce platform to sell and redeem the Water Cards through our own
official website and have developed a mobile application programme to serve clients in
2013.

In 2013, we continued to establish business relationships with new institutional clients and
to maintain business relationships with existing institutional clients, as a result of which our

institutional client base continued to develop steadily.

KME_T——FT-AKRBTXRHEZE
% ERE AT —ZF RAWRETH
BAIN30% M R BUSH H 1RG4 - Ri&E
HERBPBHEENERBERAIN  EZF
—=F TABEREAREINAEFTRE
BOEBRALEEREBBIRANLED B
5586% K 14% o

B 5100k KB KRER - HHME
RKEBDHBERENHER T —ZF
BI7% THRE-_Z—=ZFN13%  BINAK
MEFT BN EEFNEERE 22— BTN
BEMNEFEBHE T RERHRAE
& EZZ—=ZF BEMNEBETEZENE
FEBEE  BBABRMNEABLEENL
KRN ERT —BHBEPinREERRE
AARBEP ©

E-T-ZF RAEEENORERTPRE
VEBRE  LERERBRPREFE R
MEBREE  CRANKETFEREER
FEEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

In 2013, total sales of the Group amounted to RMB787 million, representing an increase
of 15% from the total sales of the Group of RMB682 million in 2012.

Our mineral water business segment has successfully maintained its gross profit margin at
81% in 2013 which is the same as the margin in 2012. After consolidating the gross profit
margin of 36% of our highland barley beer business of Tiandi Green, the total gross profit
margin of the Group decreased to 73% in 2013 from 81% in 2012.

REVENUE

In 2013, total sales of the Group amounted to RMB787 million, consisting the revenue
generated from the sales of RMB648 million of our mineral water business segment and
sales of approximately RMBI39 million of our highland barley beer business segment,
representing an increase of RMB105 million or 5% compared to the revenue of RMB682
million in 2012.

Bt Bl B

E-T—=F AKENAHEEAARE
TRNATLEEL LT —FRARE
NENT_BETHRHEETIEMT 15%

E-Z—=F RABERKEBDHRDH
BENZREFNE T —FHRANGI%
EAHTRIEEFTREBERBE6HNE
F&ig  REBNEENXR -_FT——F0
BINBMPE T —=FM73%

WA

E_T—=F AEENBHEEERARK
+RENTEEEL  WHERETHERMERK
EBHBELEEARENELNTNEELH
HEBMEMBERBAER D BHEARKE
—E=ThEEIWIEEE BT —=
EABARBNENT_EGETHRA - #in
TOANRE—RZERBETK 5%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In 2013, the sales to China Railway Express Co,, Ltd. (“CRE") accounted for 41% of total
sales of the Group of RMB787 million, representing a decrease of 6% from 47% in 2012.

Under a keen competitive environment, despite a slight drop of 5% in both sales volume
and sales revenue of our mineral water business segment in 2013, compared to 2012 due
to consolidating and including the sales revenue of RMBI39 million of our new business
segment of selling highland barley beer products, the total revenue of the Group in 2013
increased by RMBI105 million or 15% compared to 2012.

The average selling price of our mineral water products increased slightly from RMBS, | 35
per tonnes in 2012 to RMB8§,145 per tonnes in 2013, which was mainly attributable to
the continuous optimization of the structure of our client base. However, due to the
consolidation of the average selling price of RMB5,900 per tonnes of our highland barley
beer business, the total average selling price decreased from RMB8, 135 per tonnes in
2012 to RMB7,631 per tonnes in 201 3.

Fh ZE-=FHERERNHERAA
(ThEREDHEBHAEERHEEEAA
RELBENTELEETOLIA41% L=
T F47%MLBIRLD T 6% °

FERRIBRFMRRT AT —=F  #R
KMBERKEBDBWHEERIEEERL
“E-ZFHMET% BRAAMHNE
ETHEMIEERQEXEHHEARE
—EB=FTNABELNHEEE —T—=FF
EEMARAL T ——FHENTARKE
—BTHEEILHL 5%

BABEFKERNTFHEEH T —ZFH
BBARENT-—BA=1TAXRAZE_ZT
—ZFMEMARBNT-BR+AT - F
HEBMNERIBREARUEFPEERN
NEEL- BEMU  ARAHTHEHMT
REBXBEEARBATAAINTHE
B BFHEEHE_T—_FNEWARE
NT—B=TATTRE-T-=FFBA
RELTFRBE=1t—T"
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SALES VOLUME

In 2013, total sales volume of the Group amounted to 103,120 tonnes, consisting the
sales volume of 79,492 tonnes in respect of our mineral water business segment and sales
volume of 23,628 tonnes in respect of our highland barley business segment, representing

an increase of 23% compared to total sales volume of 83,846 tonnes in 2012.

In 2013, total sales volume generated from non-CRE institutional clients and traditional
retail operation channels (owned by third parties) increased by 19,274 tonnes from 33,846
tonnes in 2012 to 53,120 tonnes in 2013, representing an increase of 57%. In respect of
our mineral water business segment, sales volume of bottled mineral water supplied to
CRE maintained at a level of 50,000 tonnes in both 2012 and 2013.

OTHER NET GAINS

Other net gains mainly included government grants, which were recognized at their fair
value based on reasonable assurance that such grants would be received and the Group
would comply with all attached conditions. The increase in other net gains of RMB65
million was mainly attributable to the increase in govemment grants. In 2013, government
grants amounted to RMBI156 million, including RMBI 18 million in respect of our mineral
water business segment and RMB38 million in respect of our highland barley beer business

segment.

As our main production processes are carried out in Tibet, we enjoy relevant government
grants from time to time. The amount of grants we received from the government of
Tibet was made largely with reference to a recognition of our fiscal contribution to the

local economic development as a major tax payer and employer in Tibet.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Tibet Glacier Mineral Water Marketing Co. Ltd, Tibet Zhongji Jiahua Industry Co., Ltd. FEKNBERKEHEBERAR - AR ERE
and Tiandi Green, our indirect owned subsidiaries established in the Tibet Lhasa Economic ~ EEXBERBR AN RMEEBEMH
and Technology Development Zone, entered into the governmental grant agreements, REMB LR EAMNELERMAER
under which the three companies were granted enterprise development funds, calculated X7 © 7% = 8172 ) 62 70 7 1oz 8 A8 725 45 f el B
with reference to the individual fiscal contribution of the three companies to the local BERERI RN KFSHE - Bt
government in Tibet. Based on the relevant rules in Tibet, enterprises that operate in Z_MARERCEERES  ZELDNE
Tibet and make fiscal contributions to the local government are eligible for applying for ZZ=BRARYEAENTEHANSENRE
such governmental grants. Subject to the approval by the local government, the three BATETE - REARMROBEART  £0
companies may renew the governmental grant agreements and continue to enjoy such RS TSI 7 B (R B B R B EY
governmental grants after the current governmental grant agreements expires in 2020. ¥ HBERKHR éﬂ%% ZERTHRESR © %
“RAARAR-E-_TFRARTREEH
EEMREIBTRE e HEL BEZ B
ERMHRFEFFE  BU RN ER
i
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SHARE OF POST-TAX PROFITS OF AN ASSOCIATE
The Group acquired 35% equity interests in Tiandi Green on 25 December 2012 and

subsequently acquired an additional 30% equity interests in Tiandi Green on 9 July
2013. Up to 9 July 2013, the Group's then ownership of 35% equity interests in Tiandi
Green has generated a share of the post-tax profits of the Group's associate in the
amount of RMB I8 million, after adjustments amounted to RMB4 million for a share of
the amortization of intangible assets and the depreciation of revaluation surplus of PP&E
arising from a valuation conducted for the acquisition of 35% equity interests in Tiandi
Green on 25 December 2012, The Group's share of sales volume and revenue in respect
of highland barley beer business of Tiandi Green in the first half of 2013 were 9,239

tonnes and RMB58 million, respectively.

FINANCE NET INCOME

Finance net income of RMB20 million included finance income and finance costs. In 2013,
finance income in respect of our mineral water business segment amounted to RMB2|
million, and finance income and finance costs in respect of our highland barley business
segment amounted to RMB3 million and RMB4 million, respectively. This represents a
decrease of RMB7 million in total finance income and an increase of RMB3 million in total
finance costs, compared to RMB31 million and RMBI million, respectively, in 2012. The
decrease of total finance income was mainly attributable to the decrease in the amount
of pledged and term deposits and cash and cash equivalents of the Group available for
eaming finance income in 2013. The increase of total finance costs was attributable to the

consolidation of the finance costs of Tiandi Green in 2013.

FE (LT & N B BRBL R R
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INCOME TAX CHARGE

The income tax charge of the Group increased by approximately RMB7 million or 8%
from RMB99 million in 2012 to RMB106 million in 2013. The effective tax rate in both
2013 and 2012 was 19%.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

In 2013, in respect of our mineral water business segment, both sales volume and revenue
decreased slightly by 5%, selling and distribution expenses increased by RMBI3 million
mainly due to the increase in advertising and marketing expenses, administrative expenses
increased by RMB2 million, and finance income decreased by RMBIO million mainly due
to the decrease of pledged and term deposits and cash and cash equivalents available for
earning finance income, compared to 2012. Notwithstanding the above, net profits of the
Group for 2013 amounted to RMB461 million, representing an increase of RMB50 million
or 12% from 2012, Such increase was mainly attributable to an increase in other net gains
of RMB26 million in our mineral water business segment, the share of post-tax profits in
the first half 2013 of RMBI8 million of Tiandi Green acquired on 25 December 2012, and
consolidating profit of RMB56 million of Tiandi Green in 2013.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to owners of the Company increased by approximately RMB30 million,
or 7%, from RMB41 | million in 2012 to RMB44| million in 2013, which was in line with
the growth in net profits, after deducting the non-controlling interest of RMB20 million in

Tiandi Green during the relevant reporting period.
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FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2013, land use right of the Group amounted to RMB33 million

compared to RMBI million as at 31 December 2012. The increase was mainly attributable
to the consolidation of the land use right of RMB32 million of Tiandi Green as at 31
December 2013.

As at 31 December 2013, property, plant and equipment of the Group amounted to
RMB696 million compared to RMB304 million as at 31 December 2012. The increase was
mainly attributable to the consolidation of the property, plant and equipment of RMB407

million of Tiandi Green as at 3|1 December 2013.

As at 31 December 2013, intangible assets of the Group amounted to RMBI199
million compared to nil as at 31 December 2012. The increase was attributable to
the consolidation of the intangible assets of RMBI199 million of Tiandi Green as at 31
December 2013.

As at 3| December 2013, goodwill of the Group amounted to RMB721 million compared
to nil as at 31 December 2012. The increase was attributable to the consolidated goodwill

following the acquisition of an aggregate 65% equity interests in Tiandi Green in 201 3.

The Group acquired 35% equity interests in Tiandi Green on 25 December 2012 and
subsequently acquired an additional 30% equity interests in Tiandi Green on 9 July 2013.
Tiandi Green became a subsidiary of the Company since 9 July 2013. The decrease in
investment in an associate of RMB595 million was attributable to the status change of
Tiandi Green from an associate of the Company to a subsidiary of the Company since 9
July 2013.
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As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of the Group amounted to RMB453 million
compared to RMB340 million as at 31 December 2012. The increase in trade receivables
was mainly attributable to the increase in the amount due from one major customer of
the Group from RMB320 million as at 31 December 2012 to RMB426 million as at 31
December 2013, of which RMB90 million was collected before 25 March 2014. As at 31
December 2013, trade receivable of RMB50 million was due for over 12 months, but
within 18 months, and of which RMB376 million was due for within 12 months from such
major customer. There is no trade receivable due for over |2 months from such major
customer, as at 25 March 2014. Despite the increase in the trade receivables from such
customer, out of the total trade receivables of the Group, the Group considers that there
is no objective evidence of an impairment loss to the trade receivable due from such
customer, taking into account the history of business dealings, and the strategic business
relationship with such customer. The Group also expects to receive further sums of
moneys from such major customer before the end of June 2014 as settlement of its trade

receivables.

There has never been any write-off on the trade receivable due from such customer in
the past. Moreover, the Group maintains regular contact with our major debtors through
meetings and telephone conversation to understand the status of their operations, their
continuing business needs and ways in which the Group can improve its services. During
such meetings and conversations, the Group is not aware of any material circumstances
indicating any problems in recovering its trade receivables from its major debtors. As a

result, no trade receivable was impaired and provided for as at 3| December 2013.

As at 31 December 2013, inventories of the Group amounted to RMB54 million
compared to RMBI5 million as at 31 December 2012. The increase was mainly
attributable to consolidating the inventories of RMB34 million of Tiandi Green as at 31
December 2013.
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Source: Hong Kong Economic Times 27 February 2014

EROOR : EREBER-Z-NE-_A=T+H .
As at 31 December 2013, prepayments (including current and non-current) of the Group RZE—=F+-A=+—H A5%H
amounted to RMB4! million compared to RMB20 million as at 31 December 2012, The MEMRERERDNERD)BRAR
increase was mainly attributable to the increase of RMB4 million of prepayments made for BOF—a&8r MRZZE—ZF+=A

purchase of raw materials and attributable to consolidating the prepayments of RMB8 ST-BARARE-_TET HLANEE
million of Tiandi Green as at 3| December 201 3. REAKERAREERVHERARBKINE S

TTRBNTEMRERAH T RigABR =
Z—=F+t-_A=1T—HRARE—-TN\A
BTRENFR

As at 31 December 2013, other receivables and other assets of the Group amounted to RZZE—=F+-_A=+—H x&EEH{

RMB67 million compared to RMB2| million as at 3| December 2012. The increase was ~ [ERF R EMEEABARBA AT LEE L

mainly attributable to the increase in the amount of RMB60 million due to third parties, MR_E-——_F+_A=+—HARAR%

after deducting the effect of decrease in government grants receivable of RMBI2 million. —F-BERT -RBETARE-—TFTZBET
FBURBRHRHRRLOTZEE - A E
ZREARENENT RARB A TETHE
WE=HFIE -

As at 31 December 2013, the aggregate pledged and term deposits and cash and cash RZE—Z=F+-_A=+—H8 £5EH
equivalents of the Group amounted to RMB985 million compared to RMBI,339 milion ~ HEF R FHEFZMRE KR EBNNE
as at 31 December 2012, After deducting the effect brought from the cash and cash ~ AT BB AARBALENTREEET M
equivalents generated from operations of our mineral water business segment in 2013 and RZE-—ZFF+_A=Z=+-HRARHK
from consolidating the cash and cash equivalents of RMB 133 million of Tiandi Greenasat ~ +=E=FhLBE T - RETE_ZE—=
31 December 2013, the decrease was mainly attributable to payments made for acquiring FRMESKEXEDBOKEEEHME
the 35% and an additional 30% equity interests of Tiandi Green and for paying dividends ENBEERBREBYIR_ZT—=F
in2013. TZA=T—RAHTRHBER/ARE
—R=T=ABRNRLIRLFEMTER
VRER  HTRIZFENHKER B
B 35% MBI 0% BN K RE-F—=

FEXNTRE -
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As at 31 December 2013, deferred revenue (non-current) of the Group amounted to
RMB22 million compared to RMBI2 million as at 31 December 2012. After deducting
the relevant current portion of RMB6 million reclassified to deferred revenue (current) in
2013, the increase was mainly attributable to the consolidation of the deferred income of
RMBI6 million of Tiandi Green as at 31 December 201 3.

As at 31 December 2013, deferred income tax liabilities of the Group amounted to
RMB50 million compared to RMBI7 million as at 31 December 2012. The increase was
mainly attributable to the consolidated deferred income tax liabilities of RMB34 million
following the acquisition of an aggregate 65% equity interests in Tiandi Green on 9 July
2013.

As at 31 December 2013, trade payables of the Group amounted to RMB73 million
compared to RMB59 million as at 31 December 2012. After deducting the effect related
to the fluctuations in production in the fourth quarter of 2013, which resulted in a
significant decrease in the payables for transportation costs incurred, the increase was
mainly attributable to consolidating the trade payables of RMB28 million of Tiandi Green
as at 31 December 2013.

R-ZE-=H+-"A=+—H KEENE
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As at 31 December 2013, enterprise income tax payable of the Group amounted to RZE—=ZF+ZA=+—H ' ~5ENE
RMB20 million compared to RMB23 million as at 31 December 2012. The decrease was N EMERAARE -FTET MA=ZZ

mainly attributable to a decrease of enterprise income tax payable in the fourth quarter of ——F+ZRA=+—HBRARKEZ=FT=88
2013, T ETRIBRREN-ZT-—=FF0NF

JE R TR EATSHAO T -

As at 31 December 2013, accruals and other payables of the Group amounted to RZZE—=F+ZA=+—H A&EEHNTE
RMB144 million compared to RMB308 million as at 31 December 2012. Compared to ~ REAMEMENTAARE—ERTRE
31 December 2012, although payable for investing in a subsidiary increased by RMB5| B MR-E——F+-A=+T—HAA
million and accruals and other payables of RMB7 million of Tiandi Green was consolidated RE=BZN\BETL -HAER_T—_F
as at 31 December 2013, the total amount of accruals and other payables nonetheless TZA=+—8 #AENHBARKRER
decreased, which was mainly attributable to the decrease of a payable of RMB224 million BT ARBERT-—aE&TMEMH T Rk
for investing in an associate. BR_E-=ZF+_A=+—HARAR%
THETHNREREARAMENT - HiRE
AREMENROBEDNERTRE 2
FARENBEARRERTRTARE
“E-TEBRET -

As at 31 December 2013, borrowings of the Group amounted to RMB196 million RZZE—Z=ZF+-A=+—8 XEEMHE
compared to nil as at 3| December 2012. The increase was attributable to consolidating ~ KA/ARE—EBALFRBET MRZF
the borrowings of RMB196 million of Tiandi Green as at 31 December 2013. —ZF5+ZA=1+—HAE - H LANRE
REREBHTRUGER-"T—=F1+_7
ST—HARARE-—RBATABETHE

=+
Mo
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The Group's net current assets and net assets as at 31 December 2013 were RMBI, 141
million and RMB2,729 million, respectively, and net current assets and net assets as at 3|
December 2012 were RMBI,317 million and RMB2,202 million, respectively. Although
having significant earnings and the non-current investment in an associate of RMB595
million as at 31 December 2012 becoming nil as at 31 December 2013, the net current
assets nonetheless decreased, which was mainly attributable to the payment of dividends
of RMBI123 million, and the payments for acquiring significant non-current assets and
liabilities and goodwill of Tiandi Green on 9 July 2013. Regarding the increase in net
assets, after considering the Group’s payment of dividends of RMBI123 million in 2013, the
increase in net assets was mainly attributable to the earnings of 2013 and the net assets of

RMB212 million attributable to non-controlling interest of Tiandi Green as at 9 July 2013.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2013, the total number of employees for the Group was
approximately 461 compared to 328 as at 31 December 2012.

Relevant staff cost was RMB53 million in 2013, while our staff cost was RMB43 million
for 2012. The Group's remuneration policies are formulated according to the duty,
experience, ability and performance of individual employees and are reviewed annually. In
addition to basic salary, employees are entitled to other benefits including social insurance
contribution, employee provident fund schemes and discretionary incentive.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio is calculated as borrowings divided by total capital. The total capital is
calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus borrowings. As at
31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the gearing ratio of the Group was 6.7% and
0, respectively. The increase was mainly attributable to the consolidation of the gearing
ratio of Tiandi Green as at 31 December 201 3.
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MERGER AND ACQUISITION

The Group acquired 35% equity interests in Tiandi Green on 25 December 2012. In July
2013, the Group acquired an additional 30% equity interests in Tiandi Green. Together
with the original 35% equity interests in Tiandi Green, the Group holds 65% equity
interests of Tiandi Green and Tiandi Green became a subsidiary of the Company on 9
July 2013. Please refer to the Company's announcements dated 10 April 2013 and 9 July
2013, and the Company's circular dated 20 June 2013 for further details.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

In 2013, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB10
million (in 2012: approximately RMB41 million). Regarding the future development and
outlook of the Group, please refer to the section headed “Outlook™ in this management

discussion and analysis.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2013 and 3| December 2012, the Group did not have any capital

commitments related to property, plant and equipment.

FROLEE LI BB
R-Z——F+-_F-+HAB AEEWK
BT RMEES%HER AT —=F+
A AEBEWET K46 3 I 30% 42
o MERAEXR AR % ER - A&
BRARMEE 6% M ER - MAMEER
ZE-=FtANBKARARIKNHEA
A BRFHE  #2HARREZSE—=F
MA+AEN-Z—=FtANLBHRAENAE
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CHARGES K

As at 3| December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any asset i

TE-=F+-A=t-RAKkZZE-—_F
charges. TZRA=1—8 FAEEREAMEER
#
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES RAEE
As at 3| December 2013 and 3| December 2012, the Group did not have any significant RZZE-—=F+-A=+—BRZZ—Z=F
contingent liabilities. TZA=+—8 " FEERAEMEANK
REfE -
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group adopts a conservative approach to cash management and risk control. The
Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of its business transactions denominated
in RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from exposure of HKD
against RMB. The Group has not used any forward contracts or currency borrowings to
hedge its foreign exchange risk. Cash was generally placed in short-term deposits and term
deposits denominated in HKD and RMB.

VALUATION OF PROPERTIES

For the purpose of listing of the Company's shares on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™) on 30 June 2011, a valuation
was conducted on the property interests held by the Group. However, those property
interests were still carried at historical costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,

if any, on the Group's financial statements.

With reference to the property valuation set out in note 4 of Appendix II-A of the
Company's prospectus dated 20 June 2011 (“Prospectus”), a revaluation surplus of
approximately RMB3,947,000 was identified in respect of the property interests of the
Group as at 31 March 201 1. If the property of the Group were stated at that valuation,

the depreciation charge per annum would increase by approximately RMB130,000.

STATUS OF MAJOR CUSTOMER CONTRACT

The terms of the contract with our single largest customer, CRE, expired on 31 December

2013. The Group has been negotiating with CRE to sign a new contract.

MINING LICENSE

The terms of the mining license for our water source will expire in August 2015.
According to the relevant PRC regulations, the owner of the license shall submit proposals
for the renewal or extension of the mining license within three months before the expiry
date of the license. The Group intends to commence the procedure for renewal or
extension of the mining license on or around April 2015. The Group will continue to

search for potential opportunities to acquire new water sources.
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PRODUCTION CAPACITY

The expected annual water production capacity and annual beer production capacity are
approximately 238,000 tonnes and 200,000 tonnes for the year ended 31 December
2013 (for the year ended 31 December 2012: water production capacity was 208,000

tonnes), respectively.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
30 June 201 with net proceeds from the global offering of approximately HKD 1,472
million (including proceeds from the exercise of over-allotment option and after deducting
underwriting commissions and related expenses). On 10 April 2013, the Company
resolved to change the usage of the net proceeds from the global offering. Please refer to
the Company's announcement dated |0 April 2013 for details. The revised usage of the

net proceeds has been allocated in the following manner:

ERE
BE-_ZT-—=Ff+-A=+—-BLEE"
HAFEKEENEEREEEININA
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Purpose of net proceeds

FEREFERE
As at 31 As at 31
December 2013 December 2013
Revised Utilized Unutilized
usage of net proceeds net proceeds

net proceeds R-ZE—=%F R-ZE—=%

Fy#M +=-A=t-B +ZRA=1-H
FrERE  CERANME  KERNHRE

BEAR AR AR
HKD Million HKD Million HKD Million
BEET BEBT BEET
Expand our production capacity by constructing RIEZRFERE K&
additional facilities and purchasing additional EERIMEE
production equipment RBAEREERN 133 31 102
Expand our distribution network and toward FER RS 4948 K
promotional activities EEHEEEE 206 3 193
Mergers and acquisitions that complement RiEaEMARRIFIESR
our existing business EBH A O 1,092 1,092 —
Working capital and other general RIELEE S KHEM
corporate purpose —RIEERR 41 41 —
1,472 1,177 295
As at 31 December 2013, the Group has utilized net proceeds amounting to HKD3| RZB-—=F+_A=+—0B F~£EEE
million, HKD13 million, HKD1,092 million and HKD41 million (i) for expanding our ~ A T=F—B&B T  —T=ZBEETT "
production capacity; (ii) for expanding our distribution network and towards promotional TEANTFZBERTROT-—BEATHM

activities; (iii) for mergers and acquisitions that complement our existing business; and (iv)
as working capital and for other general corporate purposes, respectively. The remaining

net proceeds were deposited in reputable financial institutions.
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OUTLOOK

In 2014, we shall continue to maintain close cooperation with the distributors and to
devote more resources to develop our retail sales network (owned by third parties),
including six major distribution channels, namely (i) department stores and supermarkets;
(ii) hotels; (iii) high-end restaurants; (iv) entertainment venues such as night clubs and bars;
(v) golf clubs and private clubs; and (vi) others, including cinemas, specialty shops at airport
and tourist attractions etc., across different regions in China to promote the 5100 Glacial
Water. In particular, we expect that the retail sales network in eastern and southemn

regions of China will be further reinforced to further enhance our market penetration.

Furthermore, we also plan to launch more new products by leveraging on the famous
brand of 5100 Glacial Water to expand our sources of income. The Group has targeted
at higher product positioning and exporting demand. The production of glass bottled 5100
Glacial Water is expected to launch in 2014, as we aim to enhance our product grading
and to stimulate sales. Moreover, we will provide overall management consulting services
relating to the production, administration and marketing to an enterprise producing
barreled natural water in Tibet, and to establish a long-term strategic cooperating
relationship with this entity. On one hand, we can leverage our experience in managing
drinking water business. On the other hand, our revenue mix will be enhanced. It also
helps us to explore and accumulate experience in the same business with different
products. While the Group continues to implement the aforesaid four major business
development strategies, the Group will also actively integrate our existing resources in
both of our mineral water business segment and highland barley beer business segment,
for exerting synergy effect between the mineral water business and the highland barley
beer business in areas of transportation network as well as in sales and marketing,
advancing the sales of our highland beer business outside Tibet Autonomous Region, to
increase competitive advantages of the Group's operations, consolidate the market leading

position and maximize the return to shareholders of the Company.

The Group will continue to seek for new projects with the business presence in the
Chinese specialty beverage, leading to diversify our business and products, and resulting to

have continuous development and strengthening.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Yiping Wallace, aged 58, is the chairman and an executive Director of our
Company. Mr. Yu has been an executive Director of our Company since 8 November
2010. Mr. Yu is the co-founder of our Group and has been responsible for the overall
business development and strategic planning of our Group. Mr. Yu has over 28 years of

experience in business management, trading and investment. Mr. Yu graduated from the

T \E B

University of International Business and Economics (¥9MEES 5 K E2) with a bachelor

degree in Economics. Mr. Yu later received a master degree from the University of British

Columbia in Education.

Mr. Fu Lin, aged 48, is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of our
Company and was appointed to the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) on
I March 201 1. Mr. Fu has over |9 years of experience in business and capital operation
and is responsible for the overall management, business and strategic planning of our
Group. Mr. Fu graduated from Peking University (357 AK2) with a bachelor degree
in Economics. Mr. Fu studied at the Graduates School of Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences (P BI4E &R E2PT) and was awarded with a master degree in Economics; Mr.

Fu also attended an advanced management program at Harvard Business School, which

focused on skills in leading an organization.

Mr. Yue Zhigiang, aged 49, is an executive Director of our Company and was appointed
to the Board on | March 201 1. Mr. Yue has over 25 years of experience in mechanical
engineering and manufacturing plant operation, and is the general manager of our
subsidiary company, Tibet Glacier Mineral Water Co. Ltd. Mr. Yue studied at Shandong
University of Technology (ILER T2 K2 (now combined into Shandong University
(LIB K 2) in Machinery Production and obtained a bachelor degree. Mr. Yue was

appointed as the director of Tiandi Green on 25 December 2012.

Ms. Mou Chunhua, aged 50, is an executive Director of our Company and was appointed
to the Board on | March 2011. Ms. Mou has over |5 years of experience in business
management, investment, merger and acquisition and financial management. She is
primarily responsible for our Group's management, business development, strategic
planning and major decision making. Ms. Mou graduated from Southwest Jiaotong
University (FARIAX@AZ) with a master degree in Transportation Management

Engineering. Ms. Mou was appointed as the director of Tiandi Green on 25 December

2012.
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Mr. Liu Chen, aged 30, is an executive Director and authorized representative of our
Company and was appointed to the Board on | March 201 . Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Liu gained experience in the areas of law and accounting. Mr. Liu graduated from
York University, Canada, with a bachelor of arts degree. Mr. Liu also studied full-time at

McMaster University, Canada, and obtained a master degree in Business Administration.

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Jiang Xiaohong, aged 56, is a non-executive Director of our Company and was
appointed to the Board on | March 201 1. Ms. Jiang is also the vice general manager of
our subsidiary company, Tibet Glacier Mineral Water Co. Ltd, and is responsible for the
operation, quality control, equipment and production site management. She has over 25
years of experience in operational management. She graduated from Xinjiang Vocational
University (3328 T A22) with a diploma in Economic Management, then from Jiangnan
University (LFRE) (formerly known as Wuxi University of Light Industry (5% T
ARE) with a diploma of Brewery Engineering, and from Xinjiang University (F58 A Z2)
with diploma of Analytical Chemistry.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Jesper Bjoern Madsen, aged 60, joined our Group and was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company on | March 201 . He is the
chairman of the nomination committee and also a member of the audit committee and

remuneration committee of our Company.

Mr. Madsen has been working with the Carlsberg A/S Group for over 20 years. He has
had the positions as the vice president responsible for overseas investments and markets,
general manager and managing director of Carlsberg Brewery Hong Kong Ltd and Chief
Operating Officer of Carlsberg Asia Pte Ltd. Mr. Madsen was the senior vice president of
Carlsberg Breweries A/S with responsibility for Asia, among other markets. Mr. Madsen
was during his tenure as the said senior president also a non-executive chairman, non-
executive vice chairman or non-executive director in a number of Carlsberg's subsidiaries
in Asia. Mr. Madsen obtained a master degree in Law from Copenhagen University,

Denmark and later studied Scottish/English Law at the University of Edinburgh, Scotland.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERBREEZERE

Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway, aged 59, joined our Group and was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company on | March 201 1. He is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and also a member of the audit committee and

nomination committee of our Company.

Mr. Lee served as a partner of Emst & Young for many years and held key leadership
positions in the development of such firm in China. Mr. Lee is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia, the Association of Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants. Mr. Lee
was appointed as a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
Hunan Province (F BIHIR & BIHZ B) in China since 2007. Mr. Lee received a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Business Studies from Kingston University (formerly known as Kingston
Polytechnic) in London and further obtained his postgraduate diploma in Business from
Curtin University of Technology in Australia.

Mr. Lee currently also serves as an independent non-executive director of the following

companies listed in Hong Kong and China:

FREXE 9 N _T——F=A—H
MARSEEYREEE/RNRARBIUIFNITE
Z-RRARNADFMEESIR  TAEX
LZEERIERZEEKE

FRERBESFRLKGHMEBMER
A PREZTHTERBETIENS
BRA - FRERERBNABNETE:
fng BMNETFEtmAg FFnxEe
FRIAE  BEGHMAS RRPIMESS
MAEMEE - FEEE _TTLFREZ
ERTFEAEEBINES - TEEEXEN R
& B8 K 2 (Kingston University) (B & &
HTUE PR T 27 (Kingston Polytechnic)) + & #%
BEXZLTEM - WERBMNBERZE KRS
(Curtin University of Technology) )7 %5t
EXR -

FREBRTETZREOANERENTE L
MHRRNBLIFRTES 0T :

Name of Listed Company Stock Code Place of Listing
LR AR ERE REORE Lo
Chaowei Power Holdings Limited 951 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
HBEENIZERER AR BB ER
China Modern Dairy Holdings Ltd. 17 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
RERRBRERERER QA BBBZATER
CITIC Securities Company Limited 6030 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
RIELEFBRODBR AR BB ER
600030 Shanghai Stock Exchange

LBBFZ S
GOME Electrical Appliances Holdings Limited 493 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
BxXEHERERAT BBB R PTER
NVC Lighting Holding Limited 2222 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
ELRAERARAF BEBRPTER
West China Cement Limited 2233 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
REREEARER AT BB ER
Yashili International Holdings Ltd 1230 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
L RBERERAR LA BBB P ER
WH Group Limited 288 Main Board of the Stock Exchange (dealings in shares

BEMNEBRERLDA

expected to commence on 30 April 2014)
BB ER(BHRNHE T —HF
MA=+HMKES)
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFRSREEEREE

Mr. Kevin Cheng Wei, aged 46, joined our Group and was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of our Company on | March 201 1. He is the chairman of the
audit committee and also a member of the remuneration committee and nomination

committee of our Company.

Mr. Wei is currently a managing partner of Fontainburg Corporation Limited, a corporate
finance advisory firm. Mr. Wei has served as chief financial officer from December 2007
to September 2013 and has served as director since November 2008 of IFM Investments
Limited (stock code: CTC), a New York Stock Exchange listed company headquartered
in Beijing. From 2006 to 2007, Mr. Wei served as the chief financial officer of a Chinese
solar company listed on Nasdag. From 1999 to 2005, Mr. Wei worked in the internal
audit and risk management functions with Asia Pacific regional or global coverage for
multinational companies including LG Philips Displays International Ltd. (2003 to 2005)
headquartered in Hong Kong. From 1991 to 1999, Mr. Wei worked with KPMG LLP
and Deloitte Touche LLP in various audit and consulting roles between United States
of America and China. Mr. Wei graduated from Central Washington University in 1991,
where he received his bachelor's degree (cum laude) with a double major in accounting
and business administration. He is also a member of the American Institute of Certified

Public Accountant.

Mr. Wei currently also serves as an independent non-executive director of Wisdom
Holdings Group (stock code: 1661) and Nexteer Automotive Group Limited (stock code:
I316), both companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

So far as the Company is aware, none of the Directors have any relationship (including

financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship) with each other.

BHEE 46 RZTE——F=H—H
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREBHE

The Board now presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group's annual report

for the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices to enhance Shareholders' value and safeguard Shareholders’ interests.
Accordingly, the Board has considered carefully the requirements of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and as described below,

has taken actions to further enhance corporate transparency and accountability.

The Board believes good corporate governance is one of the critical factors for achieving
sustainable long-term success. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize on the importance of a quality Board and its accountability to Shareholders.
The Board regularly reviews the corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the principles and code provisions as set out from time to time in the CG Code and

maintain the long-term health of the Company.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with the code provisions set

out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2013,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board leads and supervises the overall direction and development of the Group's
business and affairs, with the objective of enhancing Shareholders’ value including
making and approving the Company's strategic implementation, considering substantial
investments, reviewing the Group's financial performance and developing and reviewing
the Group's policies and practices on corporate governance. The Directors are responsible
for, and has also delegated the chief executive officer the authority and responsibility
for overseeing the day-to-day management and operation of the Group. In addition,
the Board has established three Board committees and has delegated to these Board

committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of references.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERRE

Board Composition

During the year under review and as at the date of this report, the Board comprises of
nine Directors in total, with five executive Directors, one non-executive Director and

three independent non-executive Directors.

EEEAR
REBEFEARARETNHEY EFgH
BNEKE  BRAZWTES  —RFH

TESM=2BUFATES -

Executive Directors HITES 5
Mr. Yu Yiping Wallace (Chairman) a—FRE(FE)
Mr. Fu Lin (Chief Executive Officer) IS A (T AE#)
Mr. Yue Zhigiang EERESE
Ms. Mou Chunhua BRENL
Mr. Liu Chen ARLE
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms, Jiang Xiaohong ERi g+
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES 3
Mr. Jesper Bjoern Madsen N bt
Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway FHRELE
Mr. Kevin Cheng Wei RAEE
9

The list of Directors and their role and function is available at the Company's and the
Stock Exchange’s websites. Their profiles are set out in the section headed "Profile of

Directors and Senior Management” in this Annual Report on pages 46 to 49.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Under the code provision A.2.l of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and the
chief executives officers should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the Company are
separate and are assumed by Mr. Yu Yiping Wallace and Mr. Fu Lin, respectively. The
Chairman’s primary responsibilities include deciding on the meeting schedule and agenda,
formulating Board policies, ensuring Board effectiveness, promoting the Company and
upholding the Company's corporate governance standards. The Chief Executive has
delegated authority from, and is responsible to, the Board for managing the Group's
business, including the implementation of the strategies and initiatives adopted by the
Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREBHE

Operation of the Board

All the five executive Directors are responsible for dealing with the business of the Group
in accordance with all applicable rules and regulations, including, but not limited to, the
Listing Rules. All Directors (including non-executive Director and independent non-

executive Directors) have been consulted on all major and material matters of the Group.

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of the Group, including
convening Shareholders’ meetings, reporting their work in the Shareholders’ meeting,
implementing the Shareholders’ resolutions, determining the Group's business plans and
strategies, formulating the Group's annual budget and final accounts, formulating proposals
for dividend and bonus distribution, and determining duties as conferred by the Articles

of Association of the Company. In discharging its responsibilities, the Board meets and

communicates regularly and acts in good faith, with due diligence and care.

The Board meets regularly to review financial statements, material investments in new
projects, dividend policy, major financings, treasury policies and changes in accounting
policies. All Directors have access to board papers and related materials which are
provided in a timely manner. Directors have access to the advices and services provided
by the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) with a view to
ensure that the procedures applicable to Board meetings, and all applicable rules and
regulations, are followed. Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board meetings and
Board committee meetings, drafted in sufficient detail by the secretary of the meetings,
would be circulated to the Directors for their comments and record. Originals of such

minutes, being kept by the Company Secretary, are open for inspection at any time upon

a reasonable notice period by any Director.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board, the
matters of which the Board determines to be material, the relevant Director will abstain
from voting on the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/her associates

have a material interest and that he/she shall not be counted in the quorum present at the

Board meeting.

The number of independent non-executive Directors meets the requirements under the
Listing Rules. The Company has received from each independent non-executive Directors

an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The

Company considers all of its independent non-executive Directors independent.
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Under the respective appointment letters, all the current non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a period of three years from |
March 2014 unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the appointment letters.
Their appointment may be terminated either by the Company or by the Director by
giving three months’ written notice to the other party. All the current non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the coming annual general meetings of the Company in accordance

with the Articles of Association of the Company.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) will retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to

retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.

The Board believes that the balance between executive and non-executive Directors
is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient checks and balances that safeguard the
interests of the Shareholders and the Group. The non-executive Directors provide the
Group with diversified knowledge, expertise and experience. Their views and participation
in Board and committee meetings bring independent judgement and advice on issues
relating to the Group's strategies, performance, conflicts of interest and management
process, and ensure that the interests of all Shareholders are taken into account. Two of
the independent non-executive Directors possess the appropriate professional accounting
qualifications or related financial management expertise, which exceeds the requirements

under the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each newly appointed Director will receive a
comprehensive induction package covering business operations, policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a
Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under the

Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.
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The Company updates Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. The Directors
are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates on the relevant laws, rules
and regulations. In addition, the Company and the Company Secretary have been
encouraging the Directors and other management to enrol in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance/
act and corporate governance practices organized by professional bodies, independent
auditors and/or chambers in Hong Kong so that they can continuously update and further

improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

From time to time, Directors are provided with written materials to develop and refresh
their professional skills. The Company Secretary also coordinates to organise and arrange
seminars on the latest development of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the
Directors to assist them in discharging their duties. During the year, seminar materials,
articles and updates relating to the latest development of the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements have been provided to Directors. An in-house seminar
has been conducted by our legal adviser, a reputable international solicitors' firm, covering
the topic of insider information and disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules and
the SFO.

Delegation by the Board

There is a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to the Board for its
consideration and delegation. The Board has given clear directions to management as to
matters that must be approved by the Board before decisions can be made on behalf of

the Company.

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and to facilitate effective management,
certain functions of the Board have been delegated by the Board to the Audit Committee
(the “Audit Committee”), Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and Nomination Committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the Company which
were established with written terms of references in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The adopted terms of references comply with the code provisions as set out from time to

time in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

Nomination Committee

ENEES FMEEE REZES
Members: Mr. Kevin Cheng Wei* (Chairman) Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway® (Chairman) Mr. Jesper Bjoern Madsen* (Chairman)
PRE BREE (2E) FEEELE(TE) REBRE (TE)
Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway* Mr. Kevin Cheng Wei* Mr. Kevin Cheng Wei*
FREELEY o BREE?
Mr. Jesper Bjoern Madsen® Mr. Jesper Bjoern Madsen® Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway*
R RL B RE FREELY
Mr. Yu Yiping Wallace Mr. Yu Yiping Wallace
a—FEE a—FEE
Mr. Fu Lin Mr. Fu Lin
L LE (NE Pt

# independent non-executive Director # BUERTES

Audit Committee BEREES

The Audit Committee meets at least two times per annum. lts key responsibilities include: ERZEGEFELRTMAEGH - HE R

BEBE:

a)  to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and a) WEME BERERINEZEE -
removal of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of JFE INEE A% SR B 37 B K HE A 16 R e
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of resignation or dismissal of B SNIS R BN B S BV R ()
that exteral auditor; EEgRbEE

b)  to review and monitor the external auditor's independence and objectivity and the ~ b) R 35 il F % Al i &7 3 B5 52 HMNEE A% B B
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable standard; B EMBBYE - AREBIEN

PUESE

¢)  tomonitor the integrity of financial statements of the Company and the Company's ~ ¢) ERARARHBEHEAR A AR FE
annual report and accounts, half-year and if prepared for publication, and to review BERRE RFFERE(HERRM
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; and MG NERNL - UEHZZFREMN

M BRRIELNERHE - &
d)  to review the Company's financial controls, internal controls and risk management ~ d) & AR & A FFIE S - AT K

systems.

RREEHE -
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All the three Audit Committee members are independent non-executive Directors. The
Chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the relevant financial management expertise
and experience. The committee members, together with our external auditor, met two

times during 2013 and discharged their principal responsibilities by:

a)  reviewing the interim results and final results of the Group and the relevant financial
statements and reports and significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them prior to the approval by the Board and reviewing the external auditor's

report and findings relating to the work that has been performed;

b)  reviewing the external auditor’s audit plan and terms of engagement for the work

performed;

c)  reviewing the independence and objectivity of the external auditor, and the non-

audit service fee payable to the exteral auditor; and

d)  reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group including

financial control, operational control, compliance control and risk management.

Remuneration Committee
Its key responsibilities include:

a)  to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's overall policy
and structure on remuneration of Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing such

remuneration policy; and

b)  to review and approve performance-based remuneration by reference to the

corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

During 2013, the Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed the existing
remuneration package of all the Directors and senior management. It is considered that
the existing terms of remuneration of the Directors and senior management were fair and

reasonable.
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The Company has adopted the share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 7 September
2012. The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Board, at its discretion, to grant options
to selected eligible participants to motivate them and to optimise their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group. No share option was granted since the adoption
of the Scheme on 7 September 2012.

Nomination Committee
Its key responsibilities include:

a)  to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board on a regular
basis and make recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to

complement the Company's corporate strategy;

b)  to recommend the Board on matters relating to selection, appointment or

reappointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors; and
c)  toassess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

Two meetings have been held by the Nomination Committee during 2013 and the

following work has been satisfactorily concluded:
a)  reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board; and

b)  assessing the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.
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The composition of the Board and the Board members' respective attendance in Board HE_Z—=F+_A=+—HUEFE &
meeting, general meetings, the Audit Committee meeting, the Remuneration Committee EFENERLRERENESEEE KR

meeting and the Nomination Committee meeting during the year ended 31 December Ae - EZLETLZ  FHEESSE
2013 are as follows: REZEGERMLERNT

No. of meetings attended/held

BHE BTEEYE

Audit Remuneration  Nomination

Committee  Committee ~ Committee

Board General meeting meeting meeting
meeting meeting B 40 RE
EEZgg2 RFRAE ZES8E ZES8E ZEE8R
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Yu Yiping Wallace al—Th&E 5/5 2 N/A 2 22
T
Mr. Fu Lin RIS 4 5/5 2 N/A 2 2
T
Mr. Yue Zhiqiang EEREE 4/5 0 N/A N/A N/A
T T TiEA
Ms. Mou Chunhua BEENL 4/5 ) N/A N/A N/A
T T TiEA
Mr. Liu Chen R%AE 5/5 2 N/A N/A N/A
T T TiEm
Non-executive Director HHITEE
Ms. Jiang Xiaohong ZBRIT L+ 5/5 212 N/A N/A N/A

TEA TER TEA

Independent Non-executive Directors B/ FHTEE

Mr. Jesper Bjoern Madsen BEMErE 5/5 212 212 212 212
Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway FTHRELE 5/5 2 iyl 22 2
Mr. Kevin Cheng Wei %k 5/5 ) 2 ylp) 2

During the year under review, the Chairman of the Company has held a meeting with REBEEE  ARAEFREEEBYIFENTE
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of the executive Directors. SRT-NRARTESLHENEGE -

o TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD. @ F& #5100k &JRZER B R D &
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for the Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
requirements set out under the Model Code for the year ended 3| December 2013.
Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information
have been requested to comply with the provisions of the Model Code. No incident of

non-compliance has been noted by the best knowledge of the Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective internal
control system of the Group. Our internal control system includes a well-defined
management structure with limits of authority which is designed for the achievement
of business objectives, safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensuring proper maintenance of books and records for the provision of reliable and
timely financial information for internal use or publication, and ensuring compliance
with relevant legislations and regulations. In addition, the Group has established risk
management procedures to identify and prioritise risks for the business to be addressed
by management. During the year ended 3| December 2013, the Board has supervised a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system and is satisfied with the scope of

review and the effectiveness of the system.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

The management team of the Company meets regularly to review and discuss with
the executive Directors on day-to-day operational matters, financial and operating
performance as well as to monitor and ensure that the management is properly carrying

out the directions and strategies pre-determined by the Board.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for keeping proper accounting books and
records and overseeing the preparation of accounts for each financial year/period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at the
end of the financial year/period and the profit and loss for the year/period. The Directors
have adopted applicable Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards in all material respects,
selected appropriate accounting policies and then applied them consistently, and have

made judgments and estimates that they believe to be fair and reasonable. The Directors

use a going concern basis in preparing the accounts unless it is not applicable.

The Board acknowledges that a clear, balanced and timely presentation of financial
information is crucial in maintaining the confidence of Shareholders in the Company.
Reasonable disclosure of Company's financial position and prospects are provided in the

reports. Annual and interim results are published within three and two months after the

end of the relevant financial year/period, respectively.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting

responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the section headed

“Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 72 to 73 of this Annual Report.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The general meeting of the Company will provide a forum for effective communication
with Shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and the sub-committees, or if he cannot

be present, fellow Directors and other management members will be made available to

answer questions at the general meetings.

Extensive information about the Group's activities is provided in this Annual Report,
the interim report and circulars which are sent to Shareholders in a timely manner
and are available on the Company's website (www.5100.net). Our website serves as
a communication platform where company information including corporate profile,
corporate governance materials, announcements, circular, business news and financial
reports are available to the public. All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the general

meetings of the Company to understand the business of the Group from the Directors

and senior management in the general meeting.
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The members of the Board will meet and communicate with Shareholders in the coming
AGM 2014 which will be held on Tuesday, 10 June 2014. The notice of the AGM 2014
will be dispatched to all Shareholders not less than twenty clear business days. At the
AGM 2014, the Chairman of the Board will demand for a poll and the Company's Hong

Kong branch share registrar will be appointed as the scrutinees for the vote-taking.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association, an extraordinary general meeting
shall be convened on the written requisition of any two members of the Company
deposited at the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
Shareholders, provided that such Shareholders held at the date of deposit of the written
requisition not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company as at the date
of deposit which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If the
Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of deposit of the requisition duly
proceed to convene the meeting, the Shareholders themselves may convene the general
meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as those meetings which may be
convened by the Directors, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholders as a
result of the failure of the Directors in convening the said meeting shall be reimbursed to

them by the Company.

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings
under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a
general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph. As regards
the proposing of a person for electing as a Director, please refer to the procedures

available on the websites of the Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concemns to the Board by mail in
writing to the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room 3401, 34th
Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

To ensure investors have a better understanding of the Group, our management engages

in a pro-active investor relations strategy. Our executive Directors and the investor relations

officers communicate with research analysts and institutional investors on an on-going

basis and meet with research analysts/investors after our results announcements, attend

major investors' conferences and participate in non-deal roadshows to communicate the

Company's financial performance and business strategy.

During the year, our executive Directors and the investor relations officers have met with

a number of research analysts and investors, attended conferences as well as deal and

non-deal roadshows as follows:

Month
B

March/April 2013

2013%3/4 A

August/September 2013

2013%8/9 A

Other period of the year 2013

201 3F E b HAfE

Event

ESE

Attended six post results non-deal roadshow/
Investors luncheon/Investors conference
EMERIRHBRE REETFES] RE
ER g NS

Attended five post results non-deal roadshow/
Investors luncheon/Investors conference
RHERIRHBREG REETFEE /KRE
EAGRTS

Attended over thirty analysts or investors meetings

and conference

=HEAMiSREE SR RN E

e TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD. @ F& #5100k &JRZER B R D &
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HEETBREENTERZMIERZBR
2 NEEAREZMBRE R EHRE

RAFEER  AREIRTESEEEEBE
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WHETUTHF2URR S EIER HER

@
=

Organizer

M7

J.P. Morgan/ICBClinvestor relations consultant

BIRAE,/ TRER, 1R E & BREMH

J.P. Morgan/ICBC/investor relations consultant

K/ TiREE REEBRERN

Investor relations consultants

REERRER
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chow Wai Kit was appointed as the Company Secretary on | March 201 1. During
the year ended 31 December 2013, Mr. Chow has taken not less than 15 hours of

appropriate professional training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the independence of
the external auditor to ensure objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
of the financial statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members of
the Audit Committee were of the view that the Company's external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is independent and recommended to the Board to re-appoint it
as the Company's external auditor at the AGM 2014.

Annual audit fees of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 3|
December 2013 paid or payable to the external auditor are approximately RMB4.8 million
(2012: RMB4.8 million).

Disclaimer

The contents of this section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for reference and disclosure compliance
purposes only. The information does not represent and should not be regarded as legal or other
professional advice from the Company to the Shareholders. Shareholders should seek their own
independent legal or other professional advice as to their rights as Shareholders. The Company disclaims
all liabilities and losses incurred by its Shareholders in reliance on any contents of this section headed

“Shareholders' Rights".
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The Directors are delighted to present their report together with the audited consolidated

financial statements of Group for the year ended 3| December 201 3.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note | to the consolidated financial statements on page 82
of this Annual Report. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's

principal activities during the financial year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the
consolidated income statement and statement of comprehensive income on pages 78 to
79 of this Annual Report.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK8 cents per share (which
is equivalent to approximately RMB6.30 cents per share) to the Shareholders of the
Company whose names are listed in the register of members on 20 June 2014, amounting
to approximately RMBI62 million, and the remaining retained earning approximately
RMB9 12 million.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements during the year in the land use rights and property, plant
equipment of the Group are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial

statements respectively to as set out on pages |13 to |15 of this Annual Report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 20 to the consolidated

financial statements on page |34 of this Annual Report.

The Company has adopted the share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 7 September
2012. The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Board, at its discretion, to grant options
to selected eligible participants to motivate them and to optimise their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group. No share option was granted since the adoption

of the Scheme on 7 September 2012.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles of Association
or the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the

Cayman Islands, the Company's place of incorporation.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2013, the distributable retained earnings of the Company amounted
to RMB39 million (31 December 2012: RMBI7 million). As at 31 December 2013, the
share premium of the Company, amounted to RMBI,207 million (31 December 2012:
RMBI,207 million), is distributable to Shareholders subject to the solvency test and the

sanction of an ordinary resolution.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the past financial years,
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements and the Prospectus, is set
out on page 162 in this Annual Report. The summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any of its subsidiaries of

the Company's listed securities during the financial year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Yiping Wallace (Chairman)
Mr. Fu Lin (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yue Zhigiang

Ms. Mou Chunhua

Mr. Liu Chen

Non-executive Director

Mes. Jiang Xiaohong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jesper Bjoern Madsen

Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway

Mr. Kevin Cheng Wei

In accordance with the provision of the Company's Articles of Association, Mr. Fu Lin, Mr.
Liu Chen and Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway retire at the forthcoming AGM 2014 and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

The profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 46 to 49 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM 2014 has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors had or was deemed to have any interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO™), which are required to be recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SECURITIES
AND FUTURES ORDINANCE

As at 31 December 2013, the following persons had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register required

to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long/short Capacity/Nature

BERSRNERAIRRNATHRERE
&

RZE-—=F+ZA=+—H"  TIALR
RIEEZ LB ROIF B ERAEREAR
AfF W E MR SRR A 2 B B SRR X
R ERESIAE

Number of shares/ Approximate
underlying shares percentage
f%15,#EB8  of shareholding
BO®EE RESOEDL

Name position of interest
1 R/ %R 5/ ERitE
Tibet Water Resources Limited (Note ) Long position  Beneficial owner
ARKERBR DB (D) 1R BEREAA
Maple Essence Investments Limited (Note 2) Long position  Interest of controlled corporation
mEREAR AR (KE2) R LB S
True Asset Holdings Limited (Note 3) Long position  Interest of controlled corporation
True Asset Holdings Limited (FiizE3)  #F& X EE N RS
Mr. Wang Peter Jian (also known as Long position  Interest of controlled corporation
Mr. Wang Jian Peter) (Note 3 & 4) e X EE R R
FEEE(ME3&4)
Hongkong Raventon Company Limited Long position  Beneficial owner
(Note 5) HE ERBEBA

ErEERERAR(MES)

Mr. Ye Shunjian (Note 5) Long position  Interest of controlled corporation
FIRs 54 (MEES) iR RIEEE RS

110,572,000 shares 4323%

[,110,572,0000 M 1n

[,110,572,000 shares 43.23%
[,110,572,000 A% A% 1

[,110,572,000 shares 43.23%
1,110,572,000 & A& n

110,572,000 shares 4323%

I,110,572,000 A% B 17

236,722,000 shares 9.21%
236,722,000 A% iz 17

236,722,000 shares 9.21%
236,722,000 R B% 15
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Notes:

©)

Tibet Water Resources Limited is held as to 98.67% by Maple Essence Investments Limited, which
is in tum held as to 90% by True Asset Holdings Limited. Tibet Water Resources Limited holds
[,110,572,000 shares in the Company.

Maple Essence Investments Limited holds 98.67% equity interest in Tibet Water Resources Limited
and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 1,110,572,000 shares in the Company. Maple
Essence Investments Limited is held as to 90% by True Asset Holdings Limited and as to 10% by
Eminent Partner Limited. True Asset Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wang Peter Jian
while Eminent Partner Limited is owned as to 50% by Mr. Yu Yiping Wallace, a director of the
Company, and as to 50% by Ms. Li Xiao Bing, spouse of Mr. Yu Yiping Wallace.

True Asset Holdings Limited holds 88.8% equity interest in Tibet Water Resources Limited through
Maple Essence Investments Limited. Therefore, True Asset Holdings Limited is deemed to be

interested in 1,110,572,000 shares in the Company.

True Asset Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Peter Jian. Therefore, Mr. Wang Peter
Jian is deemed to be interested in 1,110,572,000 Shares in the Company in which Tibet Water
Resources Limited is interested. For the purpose of the SFO, the spouse of Mr. Wang Peter Jian is
taken to have a duty of disclosure in Hong Kong in relation to the said I,110,572,000 Shares. The
interest disclosed by the spouse of Mr. Wang Peter Jian is that of Mr. Wang Peter Jian which is
attributed to her pursuant to the SFO for disclosure purposes. Nevertheless, she has no interest,

legal or beneficial, in those shares.

Hongkong Raventon Company Limited is owned as to 85% by Mr. Ye Shunjian.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Directors and the chief executive

of the Company were not aware of any other person (other than Directors and the chief

executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have, interests or short positions

in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the

Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV

of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the financial year had the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered
into any arrangement which enables the existing Directors or chief executive to have
the right to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other legal entities.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Other than operating a Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and participating
in the state managed retirement benefit scheme in the PRC, the Group has not operated

any other retirement benefits schemes for the Group's employees.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up by the Board on the

basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Group's operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the financial year and up to the date of this report, no Director is considered to
have interests in a business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with the business of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the financial year, sales to the Group's five largest customers and purchases from
the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 71% and 75% of the total sales
and total purchases for the year, respectively. The Group's largest customer and supplier

accounted for approximately 41% and 34% of the total sales and total purchases for the

financial year, respectively.

During the financial year, none of (i) the Directors or any of their associates, or (i) any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the

Company's issued share capital), had any interest in the Group's five largest customers and

suppliers.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors, an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The

Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent of

the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY’S INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The utilisation status of the net proceeds from the Company's initial public offering is set

out on page 44 of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the reasonable
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained sufficient public float of not less

than 25% of its Shares in the hands of the public in accordance with the Listing Rules as at

the latest practicable date of the issue of this Annual Report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to approximately

RMBO.6 million (2012: approximately RMB6.2 million).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company had reviewed the Group's annual results for the

year ended 31 December 2013 and provided advices and comments thereon.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 were
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming

AGM 2014 and, being eligible, will offer itself for re-appointment.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The transactions summarized in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2013 also constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules. As those
transactions were all de minimis transactions, they were exempt from all the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders” approval requirements under Chapter [4A

of the Listing Rules.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The changes in information of Directors subsequent to the latest publication of the

Company are set out below:
Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway

. Appointed as independent non-executive director of Yashili International Holdings
Ltd. (Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1230) on 27 November 201 3.

. Appointed as independent non-executive director of WH Group Limited (Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 288) on 4 April 2014. Dealings in its

shares are expected to commence on 30 April 2014.

On behalf of the Board

Yu Yiping Wallace

Chairman

25 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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_
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To the shareholders of Tibet 5100 Water Resources Holdings Ltd.
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tibet 5100 Water Resources
Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group") set out on
pages 74 to 161, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 3|
December 2013, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the

consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to

enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

OTHER MATTERS

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March, 2014
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

HEBEERMEX

As at 31 December 2013
RZZE—=%+-A=t+—-H

Note 2013 2012
Pt —E-=F —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
Assets 8E
Non-current assets E(RBEE
Land use rights TR 7 32,865 1,239
Property, plant and equipment ERN 8 695,523 303,801
Intangible assets B EE 9 198,810 —
Goodwil S 10 721,139 —
Deferred income tax assets BN EE 2 8,398 9,248
Prepayments HERFIE 15 4,177 5,592
Investment in an associate REFE A RIRIRE 12 — 595,000
1,660,912 914,880
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables JEAE B 13 453,432 340243
Prepayments HERFIE 15 36,482 14,230
Other receivables and other assets Hitn UK R B B &= 16 66,526 20,690
Inventories FE |7 54,087 14,575
Pledged and term deposits B K& EHER 18 = 106,543
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 19 985,416 1,232,327
1,595,943 1,728,608
Total assets BREE 3,256,855 2,643,488
Equity &
Equity attributable to owners of the Company EAREEAEGRES
Share capital R 20 21,363 21,363
Share premium W15 5 (B 20 1,206,829 1,206,829
Reserves [ 21 195,525 177,781
Retained eamings Bl
— Proposed final dividends — R REIR S 34 161,799 124,972
— Others —HAfth 911,954 671,337
2,497,470 2,202,282

° TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD. ® &5 1007k & R 1R B IR 2 &



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

HEEERREX

As at 31 December 2013
RZE—=%+-A=t—-H

3| December

3| December

Note 2013 2012
B & —E-=F —T—CF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Non-controlling interests FERER 231,983 =
Total equity FERBEE 2,729,453 2,202,282
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities *RBERE
Deferred revenue RIEWA 24 21,749 12,308
Deferred income tax liabilities BRIEMEREE 22 50,218 17,260
71,967 29,568
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables ENE ST 25 72,766 58,530
Deferred revenue and advances received
from customers EIEMARTBRE 23 22,929 21,641
Enterprise income tax payable FERH B EF1EH 19,855 22,973
Accruals and other payables ERE A KHE AR 26 144,191 308,494
Borrowings e 27 195,694 —
455,435 411,638
Total liabilities BEEE 527,402 441206
Total equity and liabilities EaREEERE 3,256,855 2,643,488
Net current assets BREBEE 1,140,508 1,316,970
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBAE 2,801,420 2,231,850

The notes on pages 82 to 161 are an integral part of these financial statements.

FE 16| BN T AZET I RE AR

15 <
The financial statements on pages 74 to 16| were approved by the Board of Directors on EERCR_Z-WNE=A-THAER
25 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf. RET4ZE 16| M BERRAREERET -
Fu Lin Liu Chen
3% )
Director Director
EF EZF
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BALANCE SHEET
EERRE

As at 31 December 2013
BE_T-=Ft-A=+—RLEFE

Note 2013 2012
P e —2-=F —2——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR
Assets gE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB A RIKIRE [ — —
Loans to subsidiaries ERTHE AR Il 1,053,050 56,050
1,053,050 56,050
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments HERFIE 15 563 4466
Other receivables Ho Al W 5K 16 60,823 83,346
Term deposits R 18 = 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 19 442,745 984,674
504,131 1,172,486
Total assets HEE 1,557,181 1,228,536
Equity and liabilities EaREE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company EREEE ARG ER
Share Capital AR 20 21,363 21,363
Share Premium BB 20 1,206,829 206,829
Reserves & 21 (67,247) (30,209)
Retained earnings BiFe 38,695 17,303
Total equity REREBE 1,199,640 1,215,286

o TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD. ® &5 1007k & R 1R B IR 2 &



BALANCE SHEET
EERMEX

As at 31 December 2013
BE_ZT-=Ft-A=t+—ALFE

Note 2013 2012
By aE —E-=F —T-CF
RMB’000 RMB000

AR®T R ARBETT

Liabilities =
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables TR E R R EMERNK 26 357,541 13250
Total liabilities BaE 357,541 13,250
Total equity and liabilities EERABER 1,557,181 1,228,536
Net current assets ERBDEE 146,590 1,159,236
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 1,199,640 1,215,286
The notes on pages 82 to 161 are an integral part of these financial statements. F£82E 16| BRI T AZFMBRERAAK
#B1p o

The financial statements on pages 74 to 161 were approved by the Board of Directors on EEgER _TMFE=A-ThBER
25 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf. RET4ZE 161 mﬁﬁfxiﬁﬁ]ﬂfﬁm

Fu Lin Liu Chen
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

BE T EE

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

Note 2013 2012
P e —B-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT
Revenue Yz 6 786,856 682,050
Cost of sales HEKA 29 (210,954) (127,035)
Gross profit EX 575,902 555,015
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER 29 (131,941) (106,300)
Administrative expenses TR E A 29 (74,217) (64,727)
Other gains, net Hh A4S - HHE 28 159,713 94976
Operating profit E—F e 529,457 478,964
Finance income sk 24,427 31234
Finance costs FHBER (4210) (749)
Finance income, net Fslas - R 3 20,217 30,485
Share of profit of an associate FEIGHEE R B FE 17,525 a
Profit before income tax BR PTG B AT R 567,199 509,449
Income tax expense ST E A 32 (106,284) (98,727)
Profit for the year FEFE 460,915 410,722
Profit attributable to: FEALFIE
— Owners of the Company —ARAHERA 441,280 410,722
— Non-controlling interests — RS 19,635 —
460,915 410,722
Earnings per share for profit attributable to EAREEABGFE
owners of the Company BREF
— Earnings per share (basic and diluted) - SREA(EXREE)
(RMB cents per share) (BRAR% ) 33 17.18 1599
Dividends ) 34 161,799 124972

The notes on pages 82 to 161 are an integral part of these financial statements.

° TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD. ® &5 1007k & R 1R B IR 2 &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HETHE N

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Profit for the year FENE 460,915 410,722
Other comprehensive income: Hit2mE Uk :
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss AIREX LB #)E H
Foreign currency translation differences SNETEERR (23,340) 544
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax ~ FEEMZE W + MRHE (23,340) 544
Total comprehensive income for the year FEAZEKS 437,575 411,266
Attributable to: BER
— Owners of the Company —ARAHEBA 417,940 411266
— Non-controlling interests — R R 19,635 —
Total comprehensive income for the year FEHA2EKRE 437,575 411,266

The notes on pages 82 to 161 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HEeEn B E R

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADTEEARL
Non-
Share Retained controlling
Note  Share capital premium Reserves earnings Total interests  Total equity
(E Bx  RHEE fie  EBRKE & FERER  BRAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETE
At | January 2012 R=%-=%
-B-H 21,363 206,829 142,589 483211 1853992 — 1853992
Proft for the year FEANE - — — 41072 41072 — 41072
Foreign currency
translation differences MNEMEEE — — 544 — 544 = 544
Total comprehensive income ~ FE 2 AN EE — — 54 410722 411,266 — 411,266
for the year
Appropriations to statutory  REVAE &R
surplus reserve NES — — 34,648 (34,648) — — —
Dividends L = — — (62976) (62976) — (62976)
At 31 December 2012 R=%2-ZF
tZA=t+-H 21,363 1,206,829 177,781 796,309 2,202,282 = 2,202,282
Profit for the year FERE — — — 441,280 441,280 19,635 460915
Foreign currency
translation differences PMEREZR — — (23,340) — (23,340) — (23,340)
Total comprehensive income
for the year FE2ENGAR — = (23,340) 441,280 417,940 19,635 437,575
Appropriations to statutory  REUAERER
surplus reserve NES = = 41,084 (41,084) = = =
Dividends BRE = = = (122,752) (122,752) = (122,752)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-ZHBAR 37 — — — — — 212,348 212,348
At 31 December 2013 R=B-=F
tZA=t+-H 21,363 1,206,829 195,525 1,073,753 2,497,470 231,983 2,729,453

The notes on pages 82 to 161 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= Bl —
HERLhEZK
For the year ended 3| December 2013
BE-T-SE+-AS-ALSR

Note 2013 2012
P & —B-=F —F-fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETTT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRLSR
Cash generated from operations RETHELNRE 35 467,719 571,318
Interest received REVE IR 19,070 33,330
Income tax paid B FET (121,947) (85,022)
Net cash generated from operating activities METEBELRIRE T 364,842 519,626
Cash flows from investing activities REEHHRER
Lhg- e N iI=YNS]
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired (MNBREKENRE) 37 (253,614) —
Purchases of property, plant BEVE  BEKRE
and equipment (“PP&E") (Mn% - BER&ED (8,688) (44,568)
Purchases of available-for-sale financial assets BEUHLESRHEE (415,455) -
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale HERHEESREEMSRIE
financial assets 424,077 —
Loan granted to third parties BTYE=FHER (110,000) _—
Loan repayments received from a third party BERE=ANETER 50,000 m
Proceeds from disposal of PP&E HEME - BE MRERERIE — 17,113
Govermment grant received B T 6 B — 1,470
Investment in an associate REFE R RNRE (224,400) (370,600)
Advance to third parties BTE=THEK (285,427) —
Payments received from third parties BRE=ZFER 285,427 —
Decrease in term deposits E B SRR 505,000 467,490
Increase in term deposits T HRTF KAV 0 (405,000) —
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities &% & EE) (FTF) /P13 &F5 (438,080) 70,905
Cash flows from financing activities RETHRER
Repayments of borrowing from government BEBUFER (50,000) —
Dividends paid to shareholders BRI S (122,752) (62976)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEBMARE TR (172,752) (62,976)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERBREEEUHN
cash equivalents (R2) /g hnFEaE (245,990) 527,555
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FOReRAEEED 1,232,327 704,864
Exchange translation losses on cash and BekBReEBYERLEX
cash equivalents (921) (92)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FERAERBALZEY 19 985,416 1,232,327

The notes on pages 82 to 161 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

Lp 2tk

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law as an exempted company with limited liability on 8 November 2010. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KYI-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company is an investment holding
company. As detailed in Note 37, in July 2013, the Company, through a wholly-
owned subsidiary, acquired Tiandi Green which is principally engaged in production
and sales of highland barley beer products. Since then, the Group are engaged
in production and sales of premium bottled mineral water product and highland
barley beer product in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC").

The Company's shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since 30 June 201 1.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), unless otherwise
stated. These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board on
25 March 2014.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, which

are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following Standards have been adopted by the Group for the first time for
the financial year beginning on | January 2013 and have a material impact on the

Group:

Amendment to IAS |, ‘Financial statement presentation’ regarding other
comprehensive income. The main change resulting from these amendments is a
requirement for entities to group items presented in ‘other comprehensive income’
(OCl) on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss

subsequently (reclassification adjustments)

IFRS 12, ‘Disclosures of interests in other entities includes the disclosure
requirements for each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material
to the reporting entity. It is required to disclose dividends paid to non-controlling
interests and summarised financial information about the assets, liabilities, profit or
loss and cash flows of the subsidiary that enables users to understand the interest

that non-controlling interests have in the Group's activities and cash flows.

(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations
are effective for annual periods beginning after | January 2013, and have not been
applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements. None of these is
expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the

Group, except the following set out below:

TREHBEBEE)

22 B RRSIREER
() AEERMEFET REETER

AEEERE-2-=6—F— B
S B R T AR E
BEAYEHER

B @t ERIE | SRE R AT B IR
23] BEPBATEMAZENES - b
BIFRNIBNDRREEBAR
EHRTE 2 E K Jmﬁﬁfﬁﬁ
ARALEHNEABR(EHERT
B) PRI -

BB HEERE 125 NEHER
RENRE|BEHEHERHZRE
BmMEE2RFERESHONE AR
Wﬁ%ﬁi°ﬁﬁi'@ﬁ§ﬁﬁ%
FERESHOREAREBNB L

BE - BE Bx &ﬁémhiﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁ
BBER  AERP T HIFERER
F$§Iﬁéﬁ&ﬁém;¢%%%

o

)3

(b) AARRMEFEEA KRR

HTEELER - BAMBITAREE
ERZE—=F—-A—BERBANE
EHREY BYRERE T —=
F-A-—BRBNEGS M BRERER
Mo BEEE MG ER - ERIMER]
ARZEEHeUASENGS MG
BREEERZE U THAHER
B

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 ® £ # 2013 °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. IFRS 9 was issued in November
2009 and October 2010. It replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate to the
classification and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS 9 requires financial
assets to be classified into two measurement categories: those measured as at
fair value and those measured at amortised cost. The determination is made at
initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the instrument. For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the IAS 39
requirements. The main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken
for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value change due to an entity's own credit
risk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the income statement,
unless this creates an accounting mismatch. The Group is vet to assess IFRS 9's full
impact. The Group will also consider the impact of the remaining phases of IFRS 9

when completed by the Board.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that

would be expected to have a material impact on the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries

2.3.] Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returmns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.

(@)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. |dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest's proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable

net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-

measurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.3.]  Consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with |AS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the

difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with

the Group's accounting policies.

232 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are

accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee's net assets

including goodwill.
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For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

24  Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at
cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's

investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in OCI

is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in OCl is recognised in OClI
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the

amount adjacent to ‘share of profit/(loss) of an associate’ in the income statement.
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For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

24  Associates (continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between
the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group's financial statements
only to the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where

necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are recognised in the

income statement.

2.5  Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the

operating segments, has been identified as the Board that makes strategic decisions.

2.6  Foreign currency translation

(@)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Group's presentation currency. The functional
currency of the operational entities located in the PRC is RMB, and the Company's
functional currency is HK dollar ("HKD").

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in

the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings, payables and cash and
cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated income statement within ‘finance

income, net’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

() Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the

closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the

transactions); and

(i) all resutting exchange differences are recognised in OCl.

2.7  Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is

directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income

statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost less
accumulated impairment losses of each asset to their residual values over their

estimated useful lives, as follows:

Useful lives
Buildings 12 to 40 years
Machinery 9 tol5 years
Vehicles 3 to 8 years
Others 3 to 20 years
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For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7  Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,

at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other gains, net’ in the consolidated

income statement.

Construction-in-progress (the “CIP") represents buildings, plant and machinery
under construction or pending installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition
and capitalised borrowing costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are available for use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated

above.

2.8 Intangible assets

28,1 Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of
the consideration transferred over the Group's interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair

value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is allocated to each of the cash-generating unit (“CGU"), or groups of CGU, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is

monitored at the operating segment level.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Intangible assets (continued)

2.8.]  Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately

as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

2.82 Trade name

Trade name acquired in a business combination is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Trade name has a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method

to allocate the cost of trade name over their estimated useful lives of 18.2 years.

2.83 Distribution network

Distribution network acquired in a business combination is recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The distribution network has a finite useful life of 8 years
and is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using

the straight-line method over the expected life of the distribution network.

2.9  Land use rights

All'land in the PRC is state-owned and no individual land ownership right exists.
The Group acquired the rights to use certain land and the premiums paid for such
rights are recorded as land use rights, which are stated at cost and amortised over

the use terms of 50 years using the straight-line method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed

for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.11  Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available for sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. The Group

only has loans and receivables as at year end 31 December 2013.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets. The Group's receivables
comprise “trade receivables” (Note |3), “other receivables” (Note 16), “cash and
cash equivalents” (Note 19) and “pledged and term deposits” (Note 18) in the
consolidated balance sheet. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried

at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

° TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD. ® &5 1007k & R 1R B IR 2 &

FTEEHBRRBR(E

210 FERMEENRE

ERERIEENEETEHEE B
BEAETRERNR ATHHENE
EEEEHEARBARERTER
1B 7] RE 85 B B ETTRUE R AT © IR
EERZEENREERL AT RE
SHENEZHEER - JREeBAEE
WRRBEMRHEKRSRERER
MENRSE/E - FERER &
ERAORHRRERE(REELS
f)MREERES - REBI  ER
RRENFEREEES RS HHY
RERERT AT AER -

211 SREE
AEERESREES RUATER :
FRBREAABEFEEA  BER
REWRIBER KA HEER - 5
BETeRmEECREBEN - ERE
BRI BERERECRHEESH -
AEER-_ZT—=F+=-A=+T—H
LHEEEEERREYGRIE -

EREEMFIEASE BT X THEE N
FEAYEIRTSRENIETLES
BMEE UWEBHAFARDEE
BmEHARBEBRI2MEA K2
EF ANBRIERDEE - ASEHH
BURRBREBEGAEEABRANIE
WE S 13) « [H 4 FE Wk |
(MaEie) [ReERBEEEEM I
FIUKIMRE S R EBAFERI(HE
18) - SREENEREENRR 5 A
R-AEEREBEENHEEENA
Hio WIEBBREAAEBEYERN
FEeREERENFRAREEM
RPRAER - WBRERRER S
RENEABHIE FUEERAE
BEERAMERABNERNTS R
frRE® MRIEEREREE - E
HEERRBECRBAFTRAERTE
EIRE SR AR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included
in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends
to dispose of it within |2 months of the end of the reporting period. Available-
for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value. Changes in the fair
value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available for sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When securities classified as available
for sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the income statement as ‘other gains or losses, net'.
Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the income statement as part of other income. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the income statement as part

of other income when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

2.12  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously.

2.13  Impairment of financial assets

(@)  Loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial

asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(@)  Loans and receivables (continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears

or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

If. in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

(b)  Available-for-sale financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the secunity below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit
or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income statement. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the

consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are

presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for

impairment.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid

investments with original maturities of three months or less.

2.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net

of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.18 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired
in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current

liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest

method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and

amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation..

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

221 Deferred revenue and advance received from customers

Deferred revenue and advance received from customers represent the
consideration allocated to the goods to be delivered in future. Deferred revenue
is stated at the consideration allocated less the amount previously recognised as

revenue upon the delivery of goods to the wholesaler (Note 2.25).

222 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in OCI or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also

recognised in OCl or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax

authorities.
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For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

222 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related

deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary differences
arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable
to control the reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only where there
is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of

the temporary difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable

entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

Lypd Edra

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.23 Employee benefits

The employee benefit expenses mainly include salary, bonus, allowances and other
expenditures incurred in exchange for the employee services. All employee benefit
obligations are recognised during the period when the services are provided,
and charged to the consolidated income statement or included in the cost of the

related assets.
(a)  Pension obligations - defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior

periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or

a reduction in the future payments is available.

(b)  Housing funds, medical insurances and other social insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to participate in various
government-supervised housing funds, medical insurance and other employee social
insurance plan. The Group contributes on a monthly basis to these funds based on
certain percentages of the salaries of the employees, subject to certain ceilings. The
Group's liability in respect of these funds is limited to the contributions payable in

each period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.24 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably

estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect

to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The

increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for
the sale of goods in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown
as net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales

within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities as described
below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration

the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

@ TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD. ® &5 1007k & R 1R B IR 2 &

2

TESHHEREZE

224 BB
EHEBATERE AR REED
B AEERBEANSHMES
RENERKETES : RUER
ERTHNEERER  ReBO AR
fliFt o THAREE BEEREE -

MEZHBUEY  ERREER
M BRI R - RIATRIR B
BRIBREREKRTE - MEER (B
BRERIAE S EN—ERE HEN
BRI L s - DARER
f& -

BRERRAHAMERRBEPAERSR
BEBNLNREFE  ZAER
BRERTSHEEFRENERBER
BB BB H G - BEER RB AR
MR ERZAFIEER -

225 AR

WABREASE AR EBZBMNBE
FHEEMAMBE K ERHEER R
BE - WARMKRIEER - BE - M
MEFHAREEAEB AN HERE
#58 -

REBRKARSER]EAE - MR
ROEENSRAETABHER
MAKERZEEGEBHT A NLFE
BRERERUA - AEERRBESR
B YEBREPRL  RZBBRK
R PR RS °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

Lypd Edra

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

225 Revenue recognition (continued)

(a)  Sales of goods — wholesale and retail

The Group manufactures and sells a range of bottled mineral water products and
beer products in the wholesale and retail market. Sales of goods are recognised
when a group entity has delivered products to the distributors/retailers, the
distributors/retailers have full discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the distributors/
retailers’ acceptance of the products. Delivery does not occur until the products
have been shipped to the specified location; the risks of obsolescence and loss have

been transferred to the distributors/retailers.

Sales of bottled mineral water products to certain distributors or end customers
are made in form of water cards (“Water Cards Sales Arrangement”). Under the
Water Cards Sales Arrangement with the distributors, the distributors sell the
water cards to the end customers and use the logistics network, which is designed
by the Group with the Group's long-term cooperative logistics suppliers, to deliver
bottled water to the designated locations at the request of the end customers
when the water cards are redeemed before the expiry dates; and relevant logistics
expenses are charged to the Group. Sales of goods under the Water Cards Sales
Arrangement are deferred as the Group has ultimate obligations towards the card
holders. Sales of goods under the Water Cards Sales Arrangement are recognised
when the water cards are redeemed by the end customers, or when the water

cards are expired, whichever is earlier.

(b)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a loan and
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and receivables are recognised using the

original effective interest rate.

(c)  Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.26 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply

with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are

intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the consolidated income

statement on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

227 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the

consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.28 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved

by the Company's shareholders.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1  Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| December 2013
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a)  Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The functional currency of a majority of the entities within the Group is RMB and
most of the transactions are settled in RMB. However, the Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from its cash exchange transactions, which are primarily
denominated in HKD.

To mitigate the impact of exchange rate fluctuations, the Group continually assesses
and monitors its exposure to foreign exchange risk. During the year ended 31
December 2013, management did not consider necessary to enter into any hedging
transactions in order to reduce the exposure to foreign exchange risk, because the
exposure, after netting off the assets and liabilities subject to foreign exchange risk,

is not significant.

As at 31 December 2013, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by 5% against HKD
with all other variables held constant, the total net assets of the Group would
have been approximately RMB60,777,000 (2012: RMB58,128,000) higher/lower
respectively, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of the
results and financial position of the Company whose functional currency is HKD;
the impact to the Group's net profit for the year as a result of foreign exchange risk

is insignificant as at 31 December 2013.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for bank deposits which earn interest at floating rates and amounts due
from third parties carried at fixed interest, the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets. The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially

independent of changes in market interest rates.

MERMEE(E)
3.1 BHEEREZE)

(@) AR
(i INERER

Kﬁlmﬁ%”EFWW%EM%A
RE KBIRXRFIUARELESE - R
ﬁ*$glmﬁiERx%zguﬁ
JLETE - A EH L IMNERR ©

AREERKEBNTE ASERE
TEREENIERRE REBEEZT
—ZHE+ZA=+—HILFE BB
BRELBVETLEMETRH MU
HEINER R - B A KA X M E B B2
MEERBEREERBRIK

RZE—=F+-A=+—80" BF
AREHBLEE,/FES% WA
BEMAERZRFETE  AEEF
BEBREESREN ROHDAR
60777000 (ZE —ZF: AR
#58,1280007T) * TEHENIME I
BILATENARAREERM B AE
ERER W B RZT—=F
TZA=+—RH NERREAEE
FREFMNENZEDK o

iy HERERLAEBENERR

FRIZF BRI R EREF S RO SRITIF R K
REE M B 5 R K E =75 R
o REBYWEEMEAGEEE
REENBRARLEREREER L
FETBHEEHNTE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 ® £ # 2013 @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

Lp 2tk

For the year ended 3| December 2013
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a)  Market risk (continued)

(if)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (continued)

The Group's interest-rate risk arises from interest-bearing borrowings and amounts
due from third parties. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates and amounts due from
third parties carried at fixed interest expose the Group to fair value interest-rate

risk.

The interest rate risk arising from the interest-bearing assets and liabilities was not
significant to the Group as at 31 December 2013 given the short-term nature of

such assets and liabilities.

As at 31 December 2013, the impact to the Group from this fair-value interest
rate risk is insignificant given the short-term nature of the rated financial assets and

liabilities.

(b)  Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, pledged and term deposits, trade receivables and other receivables.
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged and term deposits,
trade receivables and other receivables, represent the Group's maximum exposure

to credit risk in relation to those financial assets.

Substantially all of the Group's cash and cash equivalents, and pledged and term
deposits are held in major financial institutions located in the PRC including Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region, which management believes are of high credit
quality. There was no recent history of default of cash and cash equivalents, and

pledged and term deposits from such financial institutions/authorities.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)

The Group's revenue is mainly derived from a single external customer as a result
of sales of goods, and the trade receivable due from this customer is approximately
RMB426,243,000 representing 94% of the balances of the Group's trade receivables
as at 31 December 2013 (2012: RMB320,071,000, 94%). The Group has set up
a long-term cooperative relationship with this customer. In view of the history of
business dealings made with the customer and the sound collection history of the
receivables due from it, management believes that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group's outstanding receivable balance due from this customer. The
Group's other receivables are due from other third parties. The Group performs
ongoing credit evaluations of the financial condition of its customers/debtors on
an individual basis, taking into account their financial position, past experience and
other factors, and generally does not require collateral from the customers/debtors’
account on the outstanding balances. Based on the expected realisation and timing
for collection of the outstanding balances, the Group maintains its provision for
doubtful accounts and actual losses incurred have been within management's
expectation, and management believes that there is no material credit risk inherent
in the Group's outstanding receivable balances. In the event that the single
customer terminates its business relationship with the Group and the Group fails to
timely find new customers, it may have a material adverse impact on the Group's

financial position and results of operations.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)

As at 3| December 2013, the Group has unsecured loan to two third parties
amounting to RMB50 million and RMB 10 million (31 December 2012: Nil) which
are due on 3| March 2014 and 20 December 2014 respectively. Management
performed credit evaluations of the financial conditions of the counter parties
and considered that these loans will be repaid on time with no collectability risks;
accordingly, management concluded that no impairment provision was necessary.
In the event that the counter parties could not make payments on time or default
their payments, the Group's financial position and operating results will be adversely

affected.

There was no other financial asset carrying a significant exposure to credit risk.
(c)  Liguidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash, the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the
ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group's treasury function allows flexibility in funding by maintaining

adequate cash and cash equivalent.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 HRERERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.0 HBREBEEE)
(c)  Liguidity risk © REEE
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity position based on EREREEARENEEEAEE
the expected cash flows. mEE S MRERENTEA
The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity TERAMEREERBZEA L EH A F ek
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the HifE &0 AR R B R AR A S B
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual MNeEmBE - RPARENHEEOR
undiscounted cash flows. BRNTENRTRESRE -

Less than | year

—FLR
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Group AEF
At 31 December 2013 R-Z-=5+=ZA=+—H
Borrowings B 200,000
Trade payables (Note 25) BNE S (FE25) 72,766
Other financial liabilities HihemEE 104,258
At 31 December 2012 R-Z-=F+ZA=+—H
Trade payables (Note 25) ENE S (FFr25) 58,530
Other financial liabilities HihemaE 283,591
Company VNN
At 31 December 2013 R-Z-=5+=ZA=+—H
Other financial liabilities (Note 26) HiheaBamd (PHe26) 357,541
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE-—Z—F+=ZA=1+—H
Other financial liabilities (Note 26) HbemBE (PHE26) 13,250
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For the year ended 3| December 2013
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

32  Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concem in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends to be paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,

issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group's capital is mainly from equity funding and borrowing from government

for the year ended 31 December 201 3.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of
the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as borrowings divided by total capital. Total
capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus

borrowings.

The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2012 and 2013 were as follows:

MERMEE(E)
32 EBEXERERE

AEEERBANBERRRELRKE
TELLEMEED  KMARRREHRD
W RSE A R AR B R M 2R A S
REREBETRBAREESKA -

RESLAEEARE  AKEAH
BN TREORE  REREE
B BITHBHHEEENRE

HEZE-_ZT-—=%F1+-A=+—HItF
B AEENEATERERAES
RETER

BMENEMAT K AEENEE
BELREEERER - WAL KR
ERBINERREHE - AABER
BABER BRI R E R

o

m

RZE——FR-_ZT—=ZF+=A
—t+t—HNEEARBLEET :

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2013 2012
—E-=F — T e
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
Total borrowings (Note 27) fE R B (15 27) 195,694 —
Total equity A 2,729,453 2,202,282
Total capital BB 2,925,147 2,202,282
Gearing ratio EESEBLER 6.69% —
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amount of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities

approximated their fair values due to their short maturities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year are addressed below.

(@)  Depreciation and amortisation

The Group's management determines the residual value, useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual residual value and useful lives of plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where residual value or useful
lives are less than previous estimates, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. The current

estimated useful lives are stated in Note 2.7.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)  Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in

the period in which such determination is made.

Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and taxation in the periods in which

such estimates are changed.

Dividends derived from the Company's subsidiaries in the PRC earned after
| January 2008 are subject to withholding tax at the rate of 10%. The Group
reassessed its needs to make distributions out of its subsidiaries in the PRC. As a
result, withholding income tax has been provided for the undistributed profits to

the extent they are expected to be distributed in future.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c)  Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.8.1. The recoverable
amounts of CGU have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These

calculations require the use of estimates (Note 10).

No impairment of goodwill is noted for the year ended 31 December 2013, based
on the CGU's recoverable amount computed using the discounted cash flow
method. If the budgeted gross margin used in the value-in-use calculation for the
CGU had been 5% lower than management’s estimates at 31 December 2013, the

Group would have recognised an impairment of goodwill of RMB73 million.

If the estimated cost of capital used in determining the pre-tax discount rate for the
CGU had been 1% higher than management's estimates, the Group would have

recognised an impairment of goodwill of RMB42 million.

(d)  Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables.

Management assesses the impairment of trade and other receivables according
to the trade and other receivable's aging, management's prior experience and
customers’ conditions and applying management'’s judgments and estimates when
determining the impairment to be recognised. Based on management's best
estimates, there was no impairment noted for the trade and other receivables as at
3| December 2013. Where the basis of judgements and estimates is different from
the initial assessment, such differences will impact the provision for impairment and

the carrying values of the trade and other receivables in the year.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 ZHEH
Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports ERERBEZTSANELEEARR
reviewed by the Board that are used to make strategic decisions. MEFREET TREDH -
Prior to the acquisition of a controlling stake of Tiandi Green in July 2013, the E_T-=FtAKRBERIEE 215
Group had one business segment of manufacturing and sales of premium bottled R#ER AEBER—EEENEER
mineral water product. After the acquisition of a controlling stake of Tiandi Green HMERERKERNEBA - £
in July 2013, the Group has two business segments, being the production and T-=F L ARBRMAE 2 EIRE
sales of (1) premium bottled mineral water product, and (2) highland barley beer & AEBEEEMNHEE () Snifi
product. BRKEMRM () FHREEE R M E
RBDE -
The Board assesses the performance of the operating segments based on review of BEgENKE  HEKNEAREN
their revenue, cost of sales and gross profit. BEHHEE NN RFETME
The segment information provided to the Board for the reportable segments for BE_T—=F+-A=1T—BL#HF
the year ended 31 December 2013 is as follows: B EX2QREHNEHAANZERD S
D EERMT
Mineral Inter-segment

water products Beer products elimination Group

BRKER  WEER 2BEME r&HE

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRE AR®TR AR®TRT AR®TR

Segment revenue a1y 647,445 142,893 (3482) 786,856
Cost of sales HERAR (121,772) (92,156) 2974 (210954)
Gross profit for the year FEEN 525,673 50,737 (508) 575902
Income tax expense FEHMx 94946 11,338 — 106,284
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 20429 25497 = 45926
Segment assets DEEE 1,178,761 1,664,337 (104701) 2738397
Deferred income tax assets BIEFEHERE 8398
Corporate assets rREE 510,060
Total assets BEE 3,256,855
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6

REVENUE

Revenue from external customers is derived from the sales of premium bottled

mineral water product and beer product. Breakdown of the revenue is as follows:

W 5
SNERE P O W za 2R B 8K B TR SR OK
Emk@BER - WERAAMT :

Year ended 3| December

BE+t-A=t—-HLFE

2013 2012
—E-—=F =g ——dE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARBTT

Sales of mineral water product BB RKEmiHSE 647,445 682,050
Sales of beer product BEEmIEE 139,411 —
786,856 682,050

Revenue from extemnal customers of the Group was derived in the PRC for the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Approximately 41% of the revenue was derived from sales to one single customer
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 47%).

LAND USE RIGHTS - GROUP

HE_ZE—=FfN_Z——-F+_A
=T ALFE AEEHINIEFH
W R EHE o

HE-_ZE—=F+_-_A=+—HItF
B M41% (ZEB—F : 47%) I
TREHE—MINIEFHIEE -

T fERE - AEH

Year ended 3| December

BE+t-A=t—HLFE

2013 2012
—_E—=F s —
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTT

At beginning of year F1) 1,239 1,268
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 37) WEE—RM B AR (FTsE37) 31,990 —
Amortisation charge (Note 29) BEER(MEE29) (364) (29)
At end of year X 32,865 1,239

The Group's interests in land use rights represent operating lease assets. All of the
Group's land use rights are located in the PRC and each has a lease period of 50

years.

ARELERENERELEHESR
E o REBMA LML RESLRT
- THEHIRIG RS0
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HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP

8 ME- BERRE-KEE

Construction
Buildings Machinery Vehicles Others in progress Total
i 2 - E at: Hff ERIRE @t
RMB'00 ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBI000
ARETR AR¥Tn ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETR
At | January 2012 R=%--%-f-H
Cost A 38,645 256,751 583 45,696 353 45211
Accumulated depreciation ZitE (5616) (45,050) (315) (8.865) - (59,846)
Impairment (a) RG] — 311 — — — 311)
Net book amount REEE 33,09 209,390 268 3683 353 283054
Year ended 3| December 2012 Bz-g-Cf
TZB=t+-HLEFE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 33,09 209390 268 3683 353 283054
Additions AE 720 1,610 650 1,397 37041 41418
Depreciation charges (Note 29) BB (Mt 29) (2327) (16484) (99) (1765) - (20671)
Closing net book amount ERREFE 31422 194516 823 36463 40577 303,801
At 31 December 2012 R-E-Z%+Zh=t-H
Cost A 39,365 25836 1233 47093 40577 386,629
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (7943) (61534) (410) (10630) - (80517)
Impaiment (a) WA Q) — 311 — — — 311
Net book amount REFE 31402 194516 823 36463 40577 303801
Year ended 3| December 2013 HzoE-=f
TZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount ENRERE 3142 194516 823 36,463 40577 303,801
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 37) Wil — KK B2 & (ME37) 82,370 333,909 790 547 310 417926
Additions RE 2259 2,523 — 188 4880 9,850
Transfer upon completion TREEE 7413 2511 = = (9.924) =
Depreciation charges (Note 29) T EE A (Kt 29) (3,190) (30,543) (174) (2,147) - (36,054)
Closing net book amount ERREFE 120,274 502916 1,439 35,051 35,843 695,523
At 31 December 2013 R=Z-Z%+=A=t-H
Cost A 137,936 668913 2731 4860 35,843 894,045
Accumulated depreciation RitE (17662)  (163,686) (1292) (13571) - (19,211)
Impairment (a) HfE () = 2311) = = = (2311)
Net book amount REEE 120,274 502916 1,439 35,051 35,843 695,523
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

8

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP (CONTINUED)

(@)

Certain idle machineries with the cost amounting to RMB2,978,000
were considered obsolete before 2012, and an impairment provision of
RMB2,311,000 had been made accordingly based on the assets' fair value

less costs to sell.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment has been charged to the

consolidated income statement as follows:

8

M BERRE-FKE(E)

@

RZE—ZF5  RABAREK
2,978,0007C ) A T E S HAR
EBE  IREBEENIAE
BEREERAEERELARE
2,311,0007C KRB RS

NE  BEIRBFECREA
FERME - FEOT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—HLFE

2013 2012

—_E—=F e

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMEF T ARETT

Cost of sales HEMRA 33,367 18,457
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER 58 5
Administrative expenses THER 2,629 2,209
36,054 20,671

As at 31 December 2013, no significant property, plant and equipment had
been fully depreciated (2012: nil).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group was in the process of applying for
registration of the ownership certificates for certain of its buildings with
an aggregate net book value of approximately RMB86,413,000 (2012:
RMB20,493,000). The Board is of the opinion that the Group is entitled to

lawfully and validly occupy or use these properties.

There was no interest capitalised in assets under construction for the year
ended 3| December 2013 (2012: nil).

R-E—=5+"-RA=+—8"
MEEAME  BEMRECR
RFE (ZF—Z2%F:8F) -

RZZE—=F+ZA=+—8"
AEEEREEDFENARE
864130007 (ZT——F: AR
#20,493,0007T) W& TEFHE
WEMEREEEL EE2RA
rEBEESEEMEAKER
ZEME o

HE—T—=%+_A=+—H
IHFE  BEERIRENA
8 (Z2——F:8&) -

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P

Lp 2tk

For the year ended 3| December 2013

=

Rt A=+ HItFE

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP 9 BPEE-FKHE
Distribution
Trade Name Network Total
[ o HA Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETRT ARETR
Year ended 3| December 2013 BE-E-=F
tTZRA=1+—-HILFE
Opening net book amount FOREFE — . —
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 37) W —R M B R (FIaE37) 58,200 151,100 209,300
Amortisation charge (Note 29) BHER(ME29) (1541) (8949) (10,490)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 56,659 142,151 198,810
Amortisation of approximately RMB 1,541,000 (2012: Nil) is included in the HARE 1,541,000 THEHE(ZT—=
“Administrative expenses” and RMB 8,949,000 (2012: Nil) is included in “Selling FE)GFAMNBROMTRER] M
and distribution expenses” in the income statement. ARKS949000 T H(Z T — =
FE)FANBRNEERDHE
e
10 GOODWILL 10 BE
As at 31 December
Rt=A=+-8
2013 2012
—E-=F —EF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTT

Goodwil ]

il

721,139 ==

The goodwill of RMB721,139,000 was generated from acquisition of a controlling
stake in Tiandi Green in PRC in 2013 (see Note 37). Tiandi Green was viewed as
one CGU. The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering an eight-year period. Cash flows
beyond the eight-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates
stated below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate

for the beer business in which the CGU operates.

@ TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD. ® &5 1007k & R 1R B IR 2 &

AR 721,139,000 B & B E £ R
ZE=FEFEKETRMEERN
TRRE(RMF37) - RHZBHKRA
—BReELEMN - BeELENMN
ARESENDERFEREENGTEE
T RETEFRENEEEMERN
BET \FHHMNMBREENTAR
eRETEN - BENFHENEESR
BNERT XA ERERER -
BEENBBREELBMALE
BEERNFHRBERE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations in 2013 are as follows:

Compound annual revenue growth rate EAERRERER
Long-term growth rate REfER X

Gross margin E [P

Pre-tax discount rate T ARG &

Management determined the budgeted cash flow based on past performance and

its expectations of market development.

The directors are of the view that there was no impairment of goodwill as at 3|
December 2013.

INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(@) Investments in subsidiaries

B ()
—E-=EEREENTERERN
EEBRRIOT -
6.009%~10.10%
4.00%

43.90%~46.50%
15.76%

EREARBERRREMSERN
RHETRERESRE -
EERAR T —Z=F+A=1+—
ABMEBYELTRE -

RETB L TNRER B K ELQER
HHNER-F QT

@) RMEBIATANERE

As at 31 December

R+=ZB=+—8H
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARBETT

Investments, at cost: ®E R
Unlisted shares JE TG

& Amount less than RMB500.

1 BN ARES00TT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

[1 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

(b)  Summarised financial information on a subsidiary with material non-

controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for Tiandi Green

that has non-controlling interests which is material to the Group.

I RHEBARNKRERBKEA TR
MOER—EKDE (&)

by BFEEAFERERZN-BKEAR
e B ERE

TXENHAEEMEAEEBEAFE
Ei R R R BB ERR -

Summarised balance sheet BEEBEXHE
As at
31 December 2013
R-B-=F
+ = B =SiGE
RMB’ 000
AR®TR
Current #E
Assets BE 305,705
Liabilities =3 (231,873)
Total current net assets BREEEFE 73,832
Non-current IERE
Assets BE 637,493
Liabilities BfE (48,516)
Total non-current net assets BIERSEETFE 588,977
Net assets BEFE 662,809
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

I INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(b)  Summarised financial information on a subsidiary with material non-

controlling interests (continued)

Summarised income statement

I RHEBARNKRERBKEA TR
HHNER-KQTF (&)
(b) BEERFERERN-—BEKE
DRANMEERBRE(E)

FBRHE
For the period
from 9 July 2013
(date of acquisition)

to 31 December

2013

f=B-=%

tANH

(ks B 59)

E-B-=F

+=ZA=+—~H

HE

RMB’ 000

ARBT R

Revenue L 142,893
Profit before income tax BR P15 B A0 A B 67438
Income tax expense S HiF < (11338)
Profit after tax BRI 56,100
Other comprehensive income Hip 2wl —
Total comprehensive income ZEWGER 56,100

Total comprehensive income allocated to DI EIEERIE R

non-controlling interests FENEER 19,635

There is no dividend paid by Tiandi Green in 201 3.

R En - T —=F W BIKT
H&/%\ -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

I INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY I RELRANREREHE QTR
(CONTINUED) HNER AR (£E)
(b)  Summarised financial information on a subsidiary with material non- b) BEEEARFEREZRN—BHE
controlling interests (continued) DR BERBE(E)
Summarised cash flows HEnEME

For the period
from 9 July 2013
(date of acquisition)

to 31 December

2013
f=—B-=%
tANH
(ks B 59)
E-B2-=F
+=A=+-—H
il
RMB’ 000
ARBT R
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRESR
Cash generated from operations REEXHNRE 103,413
Interest received B HFLE 3420
Income tax paid [=ENPZIEET (25452)
Net cash generated from operating activities A8 &)& EVEE 4 KVIR & F 58 81,38l
Net cash used in investing activities RETZBMANREFHE (3.652)
Net cash used in financing activities RETHMANRE (150,000)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ~ HERBEEEBYR D FE (72.271)
Cash and cash equivalents at 9 July 2013 RZE—=F+ANHAH
(date of acquisition) (WEAR) R RE2EED 205,386
Cash and cash equivalents at R-ZE-=%+ZA=+—H
31 December 2013 MEERAEEEY 133,115
The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations. EREXAARIFEMERNSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

Lypd Edra

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

I INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Summarised financial information on a subsidiary with material non-

controlling interests (continued)

The following is a list of significant subsidiaries of the Group as at 31

December 201 3:

Place/date of incorporation/

type of legal entities

RIE 2 RWRE R @M E QTR

HHNER-KAT (&)
by BHEEAFZREZN-BHE

DANPBERBEE)

$%@$EWE@EW%EW
T

Company name HRALHY/ A8/ Issued/paid-in capital Effective interest held Principal activities
NEER HERREY BRfT/BERE ERfERE TEED
Indirectly held: 2013 2012 2013 2012
BENE: —%-=F —F-2f Z%-=f _—F-°f%
Tibet ZhongjiJiahua Industry PRC/I January 2004/ USD16,000,000 USD16,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Co, Ltd, Limited liability company 16,000,005 16,000,000 RERER
RETREEERER hE/—TENF-A-B/
ARA ﬂ BRRA
Tibet Glacier Mineral Water PRC/31 October 2005/ RMBI18,000,000 RMBI18,000,000 100% 100%  Bottled mineral water
Co, Ltd. Limited liability company AR 118000000 AK 1180000007 manufacturing and sales
BRIk BRABRAT tE/ZFTRETA=T-B/ HERHEREBRK
BRAF
Beijing 5100 Enterprise PRC/I3 July 2007/ RMBI,000,000 RMBI 000,000 100% 100%  Bottled mineral water market
Planning Club Co, Ltd. Limited liability company ARH1000000%  ARH10000007T operation and management
ERAL-ZREREE BB/ ZEEHELATZR/ BEBRKTHEERER
BEBERAT BRRA
Tibet Glacier Mineral Water PRCI2I Apnil 2010/ RMB3,000,000 RMB3,000,000 100% 100%  Bottled mineral water marketing,
Marketing Co, Ltd, Limited \iabi\ity company AR¥3000000  ARH30000007T promotion, distribution
ARKNBFRKEH PE/ZZ-FEMA-T-R/ and retailing
BRAR BRRA i HE - R
TERRERK
Tibet Tiandi Green Beverage PRC/28 Apnil 2009/ RMB200,000,000 RMB200,000,000 65% 35%  Beer manufactuing and sales
Development Co, Ltd. Limited liability company AR#200,0000007 AR 2000000007 BEEERHE
ERAMEEHRER tE/~FTAFMA-TN\B/
ARARE BRAF
Loans to subsidiaries () MHEARRHUNER
The loans to subsidiaries as at 3|1 December 2013 were unsecured and RE—=F+-H=+—HM@EMH

interest free, which were denominated in HKD and RMB. There are no fixed

repayment terms for these loans and the Company has no plan to recall

these loans in the near future.

BRARENERABTRA

RETE) AE ﬁﬁ&%%°a

ﬁ%mlﬁlm%%%ﬂ$
mEEIR ﬁ%&@&%EM°
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

12 INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP 12 REEQTNRE
As at 31 December
R+=RA=+-H
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR
Share of net assets EFEE — 595,000
Opening net book amount FYREFE 595,000 —
Additions (a) WE (a) = 595,000
Share of profit JE A A1 17,525 —
Gain on remeasurement of previously held BB BIRA R
interests (Note 28) Yas (FizE28) 3,909 =
Foreign currency translation difference INERTEER (10,934) —
Change from associate to subsidiary (b) feHE N RIBE RITB AR (D) (605,500) =
Closing net book amount FREEFE — 595,000
(@)  The Group acquired 35% equity interests in Tiandi Green on 25 December @ AEER_ZE-—_F+=A
2012 and recorded Tiandi Green as investment in an associate. Z 5 BRI AR B 35% M AR
L KRR E I EREE QA
HRE o
(b)  The Group acquired a further 30% equity interest in Tiandi Green on 9 July b) AEER-_FT-—=F+ANBE

2013, and after the acquisition, the Group held 65% of the equity interests
in Tiandi Green and obtained the control of it. The carrying value of the
previously held 35% interest was remeasured based on the fair value as at 9
July 2013 and it has been transferred as part of the purchase consideration

for the acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 37).

@ TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD. ® &5 1007k & R 1R B IR 2 &

— SR K 4% 65 F) 30% AR AE
WEE AEERARMEE
() 65% % 4 NP BN 15 7% 1 B RO 2
T o R B3RS EREE
BE_Z-—=FtANBMRAE
BEEFTE - TEBEAKE—
FHMBARIMBEREN—H2
(BIEE37)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

12 INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP (CONTINUED) 12 REERATNREE)

FAASEREBE DR REARE
BE(BRBE)REENT :

The Group's share of the results of its associate during the year, and the aggregated

assets (including goodwill) and liabilities are as follows:

As at 3| December

Rt+=A=+—H
2013 2012
—E-—=F =g ——dE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARBTT

Assets BE — 704,832
Liabilities BE — 109,832
For the

period from

For the period 26 December to

from | January

3| December

to 9 July 2013 2012

H-—F——F

+ZA=+"AH

"=-T-=%F S

—A—-BE +t-HA=t—H

tANBHE B

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETT

Revenue Wz 57,610 —
Profit for the period HA R A 21,106 —
Other comprehensive income Hfth 2 E W — 3
Total comprehensive income PEKGEE 21,106 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

I3 TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP 13 EBWEZR-EER
As at 31 December
W+=B=+—-H
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB000

AR®BTR ARETT

Trade receivables due from third parties BRE=FHEKE ST 453,432 340,243
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables W R RIE B = =
453,432 340,243
Trade receivables represent amounts due from third party customers with good FEWE 5 7R re e IE a8k R 4T B8 40
credit history and low default rates. KENE=FEPHIFIEA °
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group's trade receivables were all RZE-—Z=ZFfR-ZF-—Z-F+=H
denominated in RMB. The aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows: =+—RB  RAEENERESHTAAA
RE:HE - BIE S RO K& DT
T
As at 31 December
W+t=ZA=+—-H
2013 2012
—E-=F e e =2
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Within 6 months 6fE AR 318,529 315523
Over 6 months but within | year HiReEABIHER F 82,910 2403
Over | year but within 2 years il FENER2F 51,595 689
Over 2 years B2 E 398 —
453,432 340,243
As at 3| December 2013 and 2012, no trade receivables were impaired and R_B-—=ZFR_F-—_F+_H
provided for, the carrying amounts of the above trade receivables approximated =+t—B HSECAREKEZTRER
their fair values. BRm - FiREWEZTEREERL
NABERE -
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amounts HEBHNRSEERRA DEKE
of trade receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as SHOEREE - AEEY ERHEEME
security. HmiERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

|4 CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS - GROUP AND 14 SREENFREE-FRERK
COMPANY N
(@)  Financial assets neither past due nor impaired (@) RBHEERENEHEE
The Group does not have formal contractual credit terms agreed for the AEEVERAE-ZFHHE
sales to one single customer. For management review purpose, the Group BEEMERNELNEEBK
regards any receivable balance within 6 months as not overdue for sales RABEREERN HRE-F
to one single customer. And for other sales, the contractual credit term is FHEMS  AEBHEESEA
mostly within 3 to 6 months. ZE AN R EUBRIBER R

KpH - MAEMHENS @ &
WEEMBENT=ZE/\EA -

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired RIMARRENSREENTE
can be assessed by reference to the nature of counterparties or to historical EEER2ZHANMESHE
information about counterparty default rates: KL R 2 BRBETT RIS

As at 31 December

W+=A=t+—8H

Group

r&EH
2013 2012
—EBE-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
Trade receivables EWEZRK ARETR ARBTIT
~ Group | —FI48 = 60
— Group 2 —%24 318,173 233,930
318,173 233,990
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

|4 CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS - GROUP AND 14
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(@)  Financial assets neither past due nor impaired (continued)

TREENFEEE - ZAKERSE

DE (&)

() FEMAFAENSBEES)

As at 3| December

R+=A=t+—-8
Group Company
xEE KN

2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-=f "ZT-—fF CZB-=f —T——F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Other receivables Hith R ARBTR ARETT AR¥Trn ARETR
- Group | -F14 60,000 — 60,000 =
- Group 2 -4 6,526 20,690 823 83,346
66,526 20,690 60,823 83,346

Group | —new third parties/related parties (less than 6 months).

Group 2 — existing third parties/related parties (more than 6 months) with

no defaults in the past.

@ TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD. ® &5 1007k & R 1R B IR 2 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

|4 CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS - GROUP AND 14 SRMEENCELZE-XAEERE

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(b)  Financial assets past due but not impaired

As at 3| December 2013, trade receivables of approximately
RMB135,259,000 (2012: RMB106,253,000) were past due but not impaired.

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

DE (&)

(b)) CEHERMENEREE

RZZE—=F+ZA=+—8"
ERHESERENERE SR
#AANR 135,259,000 (=
T——F: AR%106,253,000
TT) o ZERWEZHRHRRD
g N

As at 31 December

R+=RA=+-—8H
Group
A %M
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETT

Over credit term but within 6 months BREEHETEREA 357 81,533
Over 6 months but within | year HideEAETER | F 82,910 24031
Over | year but within 2 years BB FETRB2E 51,594 689
Over 2 years B2 F 398 —

135,259 106,253

As at 31 December 2013, no other receivables were past due nor impaired
(2012: nil).

W-F-=#+-/=+-8"
BEEGERTBHIRE (=
T——F:E) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

I5 PREPAYMENTS - GROUP AND COMPANY 15 FEAREBE-FTEEREKAT
As at 3| December
Rt=-A=t+-H
Group Company
AEE b N
2013 2012 2013 2012
“2-=f —T--F ZCZB-=f —T-—f

RMB'000 RMBOOO ~ RMB'000 RMB000
AR®TR ARBTT ARETR ARETRL

Prepayments made for purchase of raw materials, B8 RMH - |RE X

services, and equipment RGN 35,766 19,822 563 4466
Prepaid enterprise income tax B EEREHN 4,893 — = —
40,659 19,822 563 4466

Less: Non-current portion R EREBS
Prepayments made for purchase of equipment (a) & E & HEHITERNFIA () (4,177) (5217) — —
Prepayments made for services AR RS IE — (375) = =

(4,177) (5592) — L

Current portion RBHH 36,482 14230 563 4466

(@)  These balances represent prepayments made for the purchase of equipment, @ HEEHRERBERE (AME
ERARES) MBMNOZIR

R R IERE AN SR REENL N
BHEHE

the ownership of which has not been obtained.

The carrying amounts of current and non-current prepayments are denominated in

the following currencies:

As at 3| December

R+t=A=+-H
Group Company
F5H N

2013 2012 2013 2012
2= —T--§ ZB-=f —T-——F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARMTRT ARETR
RMB NG 40,045 14,343 419 —
HKD BT 470 840 — 637
usD =Y 63 3,747 63 3,747
Furopean dollar (“EUR") BT(IBRTl) — 810 — —
Swiss Franc (“CHF") AR (R LER ) 8l 82 8l 82
40,659 19,822 563 4466
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

16 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS - GROUP AND l6 HtEWRREMEE-FEER
COMPANY & AT
As at 3| December
Rt=A=+-H
Group Company
rEH KAT
2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-=f -—E--—F CZE-=f —ZT-_F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREBETT AR®TR ARETR

Government grants receivable (a) TR HE B UK () 1,685 13991 — —
Deposits ik 627 601 — —
Interest receivable FEMFI & 823 4,087 823 4,087
Dividend receivable et — — — 79,259
Amounts due from third parties (b) FEWE=HFIE (b) 60,000 — 60,000 —
Others HAt 3,391 2011 — —
66,526 20,690 60,823 83,346
Less: Provision for impairment R RERE — — — il
66,526 20,690 60,823 83,346
(a)  This balance represents amounts due from the local government for @) MESRIECEREBRKIIKE
government grants that have been approved but not yet received. 1 77 R R BRI
(b)  These balances represent i) amount due from a third party company of b) ZEERE)ER—RE=A2A7]
RMB50,000,000 with contractual maturity date on 31 March 2014 and a HIE A AR50,0000007C © &4
fixed interest rate at 8% per annum; i) amount due from another third party B R_E—NF=A=+—
company of RMB10,000,000 with a fixed interest rate at 10% per annum, A BEEFENESE :i)EKS
which is mature on 20 December 2014. —RE=ZFAARERARR

10,000,0007T * EEEFIZE IR -
R-ZZE—NFE+=-_HA=+HZ

5 o
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amounts WERNRSEERREEER FELGR
of the receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as JEREREE - AEEWEISE ERER
security. mfEREA o
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HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

I6 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS - GROUP AND 16

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of other receivables are denominated in the following

currencies:

HttBUR R EMMEE -FKE K
ERATR(E)
Hit R USRHBREEA T EREHE

As at 3| December

R+ A=
Group Company
r5E AAH

2013 2012 2013 2012
—EB-=f —ET-—-f ZBE-=F <—ZT-——-F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR¥Tr ARETR
RMB ARE 65,152 17,054 60,003 3,174
HKD BT 1,360 3,627 815 80,172
UsD e 14 9 5 -
66,526 20,690 60,823 83,346
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HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

17 INVENTORIES - GROUP 17 FE-FXKE
As at 31 December
W+=B=+—-H
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB000

AR®BTR ARETT

Raw materials R E 35,427 10,953
Finished goods R 14,672 3,592
Consumable materials FERME 30 30
Work in progress & 3,958 —
54,087 14,575
The cost of inventories which was recognised as an expense and was included in BE_ZT-—=F+_A=+—HIHF

Xt

‘cost of sales" amounted to approximately RMB 196,903,000 for the year ended 31 CHBRREALGA [HEKEK] 0
December 2013 (2012: RMBI 15,716,000). FERAL BARE196903,0007T (=
T—_F : AR¥I157160007T) ©

As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of the Group's inventories did RZBE—=F+_A=+—H " ~5E
not exceed the net realisable value, and no provision for decline of the value of FENRAEYRBOE A #EHE
inventories was made. NMERTFEBER D E L E A -
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HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

I8 PLEDGED AND TERM DEPOSITS - GROUP AND COMPANY

(@)  Pledged deposits

18 ERREBER -FEERKQH
() EREX

As at 3| December

R+=RA=+-H
Group Company
S L] PN
2013 2012 2013 2012

“F—=F _—T-_F|ZF-=F =T —F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTT AR%TR ARETR

Pledged deposits

— 6543 — —

These deposits had been pledged as security for the issuance of bank

acceptance notes to suppliers and were denominated in RMB.

(b)  Term deposits

BRERAH ARG RT
AREEMBERNRITER > B
UARKHE -

(b) EHEM

As at 3| December

Rt=A=t-8H
Group Company
F5E EAH
2013 2012 2013 2012

“2-=f —T--F ZB-=f —T-_f
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRE AR%®Tr AR¥TR ARETR

Term deposits

= 100,000 = 100,000

These deposits were held in banks with maturity of more than three months

and were all denominated in RMB in 2012.

As at 3| December 2013, the Group's has no pledged and term deposits.

R-E——F  THERKFN
ERTEFHRAS=EA LA
RITERP &R - MAARES

sty

B o
ZAr

R_B—=f+_A=+—8"
ALY &K ERHFR
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HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - GROUP AND COMPANY 19 RERFASEEBY - AEERED
5
As at 3| December
Rt=A=+-H
Group Company
rEH KAT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f —T--Ff CZE-=f —T--F%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT AR®TR ARET:H

Cash on hand FHEES 140 262 — —
Cash at bank RITER 985,276 1,232,065 442,745 984,674

985,416 1,232,327 442,745 984,674

Denominated in: AHEE
-RMB - AE# 937,873 652,567 400,653 411972
-UsD —%7T 24,246 983 23,260 —
- HKD — BT 23,289 578,769 18,832 572,702
— Others —Efth 8 8 = —
985,416 1232327 442,745 984,674
As at 31 December 2013, the Group's cash and cash equivalents amounting to RZBE-—Z=F+_A=+t—H &
approximately RMB 938,826,000 (2012: RMB1,225,816,000) were held in the SENReRBREEBUHNARK
financial institutions located in the PRC. The remaining amounted to approximately 938,826,000 (ZF—_F : AR®
RMB 46,590,000 (2012: RMB 6,511,000) were held in major financial institutions 1,225,816,0007C) HMETER & REE
located in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. A - SR TR AK46,590,0007T (=
T——F: AR%6511,0007T) MR
FRTTBRNEIECRBERS o
The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and the AR THERN R IRRINE A Kt
remittance of the foreign currencies out of the PRC are subject to relevant rules SNEEfe R BIRE Y - 7R3 SR BIBUR AR
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC govemment. HIAERESNE & A3 A S AR 1 o
The Group earns interests on cash at bank at floating bank deposit rates, which AEERIHROIFRAMRERTE
range from 0.1% to 3.5% per annum for the year ended 3| December 2013 (2012: HROFE  BHE-T—=F1=A
range from 0.1% to 3.5% per annum). =tT—HIEFE - BRENENF0.E

F35E (ZE—=F : FHEATFO.
EZ3SE) -
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HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

20 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM - GROUP AND COMPANY 20 RERRGEE-FEEREDF

Equivalent
Number of nominal
ordinary shares  Nominal value value of
(thousand) ~ of ordinary ordinary shares Share
LERHE shares LER premium Total
(TR) SEREREE KRAESE R @t
HKD'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000

TEn AREBTT ARETR  AREBTR

Balance as at | January and RZE-—5-A-BR
31 December 2012 and 2013 +ZR=t-BR=F-Z%
KA ER 2568893 25,689 21363 1206829 1,228,192
21 RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 2l RE-AREREDF
Group rEE
Statutory
surplus
Capital reserve  Translation
reserve EEBE  differences Total
BAfifE MRE  FRER ast
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR AR¥TxR
Opening balance | January 2012 —E--%-8A—H
HENER 146,012 27,031 (30,454) 142,589
Foreign currency translation differences SNETE 8 — — 544 544
Appropriations to statutory reserve surplus (2)  IREUVAEBHATER (2) — 34,648 — 34,648
At 31 December 2012 R=-%B-=%
+=—A=+-—H 146,012 61,679 (29910) 177,781
Opening balance | January 2013 —E-=%5-A—-H
M F A& ER 146,012 61,679 (29,910) 177,781
Foreign currency translation differences INETEER — — (23,340) (23,340)
Appropriations to statutory reserve surplus (a) RIVEAERBHROER () = 41,084 = 41,084
At 31 December 2013 R-Z-—=%
+=ZA=+-—-H 146,012 102,763 (53,250) 195,525

@ TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD. ® &5 1007k & R 1R B IR 2 &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
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2|

RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Group (continued)

@

According to the provisions of the articles of association of the Group's
subsidiaries located in PRC (“PRC subsidiaries”), the PRC subsidiaries shall
first set aside 10% of its profit attributable to owners after tax as indicated in
their statutory financial statements for the statutory surplus reserve (except
where the reserve has reached 50% of the entity's registered share capital)
each year. PRC subsidiaries may also make appropriations from its profit
attributable to shareholders to a discretionary surplus reserve, provided it is
approved by a resolution passed in a shareholders’ general meeting. These
reserves cannot be used for purposes other than those for which they
are created and are not distributable as cash dividends without the prior
approval obtained from the shareholders in a shareholders’ general meeting

under specific circumstances.

When the statutory surplus reserve is not sufficient to make good for any
losses of the PRC subsidiaries from previous years, the current year profit
attributable to the owners shall be used to make good the losses before any

allocations are set aside for the statutory surplus reserve.

The statutory surplus reserve, the discretionary surplus reserve and the
capital reserve of the PRC subsidiaries may be converted into share capital
of the PRC subsidiaries provided it is approved by a resolution passed in a
shareholders' general meeting and meets other regulatory requirements with
the provision that the ending balance of the statutory surplus reserve does

not fall below 25% of the registered share capital amount.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the directors of the PRC subsidiaries
proposed the appropriations amounting to approximately RMB 41,084,000
(2012: RMB34,648,000) to statutory surplus reserve.

21

WE-AKERAQRE)

rEB(E)
() BEAEEMRPENHIERT

(TREIME AR DHEB SR
Bl mEIMBRARIASE R
EEM RIS ARG
BETEE 0% BIEEEBBA
Be(E R EEREMMR
AK50%E BN o BB A A
TR EERRASBBAIRZER
HAERKEACR B (A MEREUER
BHAESE - BRABERUMNE
HIN - RFREE TS REEL
ik BEREREBR TERR
RERAE EFRBAEIN - TR
SRERERENEK -

EEERHABS IRABMHT
BUPH B 2 B A B BB 1RA - A
FENEAARGNBAERR
ETE BB AR S AR (A

e

R EARKEERBRDE
2 EERHARENEAR
B ELRRASEBHIR
BEPLEANAEMEERET
BRAHERA - BERNETERER
AEENEOREMRA S B
25% °

HE-P-=F+=F=SE
IHFE - PENBARNESRE
BRDASENEERBRLAES
KB AR®410840007T(=F
—ZfF : AR¥34,648,0007T) °
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21 RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED) 21 RBE-FAEEREQF(E)
Company KAT
Statutory
surplus
Capital reserve  Translation
reserve EEEE  differences Total
BAfifE MRE  FEER At

RMB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000
AR¥TR AR%®TRn ARETR ARETR

Opening balance | January 2012 —E——%-A—H

LR — (30,852) (30,852)
Foreign currency translation differences ST E 5 — — 643 643
At 31 December 2012 RZ-B-—Z=F

+=A=+-—H — — (30,209) (30,209)
Opening balance | January 2013 —B-=%-A—H

ME LR — — (30,209) (30,209)
Foreign currency translation differences SNETE 5 — = (37,038) (37,038)
At 3| December 2013 R-ZE-=%

+t=A=+-—H = = (67,247) (67,247)
The profit attributable to owners of the Company as recorded in the financial BE_Z—=F+_A=+—BL#F
statements of the Company amounting to RMB 144,592,000 for the year ended 3| B RARBMBHREMBARRBES
December 2013 (2012: RMB 80,036,573). ANEGMBRARE 144,592,000 (=

T——F: AR¥80,0365737T) °
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP 22 EEMBH-AKH
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows: EEHBEEERELCHEARN DN
LN

As at 3| December

R+=A=t—8H
2013 2012
—EB-=F SIS
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARBTT

Deferred tax assets: FERBEE .
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered after — BB 1218 A& WK EH
more than 12 months RIERITEEE 4,032 2,329
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months — — 128 A MU B K EIEF B B & 4,366 6919
8,398 9248
Deferred tax liabilities: EEREEE .
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered after — BB 1218 A& EE
more than 12 months ERERIEAE (31,234 —
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months  — 128 A MU B FEEF TE & & (18,984) (17,260)
(50,218) (17,260)
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HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

22  DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (CONTINUED) 22

The gross movement on the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as

follows:

EEFREH - AKE (&)
BERABERELTCHERENE
BT :

Year ended 3| December
BEE+t=-A=t—H
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARBTT

Deferred tax assets: EEBIEEE :

At beginning of year F4 9,248 3,106

Income statement (charge)/credit (Note 32) FIERGIA) /B (HE32) (850) 6,142

At end of year FR 8,398 9,248

Deferred tax liabilities: EEBIEAE !

At beginning of year F1) (17,260) (10413)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 37) W i — R B A R (BT RE 37) (33,833) =

Income statement charge (Note 32) FERET A 32) (16,385) (17,260)
Payment I 17,260 10413

At end of year FR (50,218) (17,260)
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (CONTINUED) 22 BEERBHR-FEE(E)
The balances of deferred tax assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2013 were RZE—=F+-A=+—H " &L
not offset because the deferred tax assets and liabilities related to income taxes MBEENRBEESBRLAREN  JH
were levied by different taxation authorities. The movement in deferred income tax REZSELCHBEEREBEREBAN
assets and liabilities during the year is as follows: FRIgH A AR B HERIK - FAR

LEHEHEERARNESHNT

Undistributed Other
Provisions for Deferred Accrued  profits from  temporary
impairment income expenses  subsidiaries  differences Total

REWEAR RTEH
AERE BThE  BRER NRIRNE gz L)
RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O0  RMBO00O
AR®TR AR®TR ARMTn ARMTR ARETR ARBTR

Deferred tax assets EEHEEE

At | January 2012 WZE-—F—-f—H 347 690 858 — 211 3,106
Income statement credit FIBRET — 156 5839 — 147 6,142
At 31 December 2012 RZE-Z&+ZA=1-H 347 1 846 6,697 — 358 9248
Income statement charge GY-EH DN = (69) (1,076) = prl (850)
At 31 December 2013 R=B-=f+=A=t-H 347 1781 5621 — 649 8,398

Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE

At 1 January 2012 W-Z-—F-F-H — — — (10413) — (10413)
Income statement charge MEBREA — — — (17.260) — (17,260)
Payment 5% — — — 10413 — 10413
At 31 December 2012 RZB-Z$+-A=1-H — - - (17,260) - (17,60)
Income statement credit MERER — — — (17,978) 1,593 (16,385)
Acquisition of a subsidiary s —ER AR — — — — (33,833) (33,833)
Payment GE — — — 17,260 — 17,260
At 31 December 2013 R=E-Z%+=h=t-H — — — (17978) (32,240) (50,218)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 ® £ # 2013 @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

22  DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2013, as the Company's certain subsidiaries’ future taxable
income would not be available against which their temporary losses could be
utilised and also the losses of those subsidiaries would not be offset by the taxable
income of other subsidiaries within the Group, as there is no legally enforceable
right to do so. As such, the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of RMB 10,328,000 (2012: RMB 10,589,000) in respect of losses amounting to
RMB 47,730,000 (2012: RMB56,643,000) that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. Losses of RMB 47,730,000 as at 31 December 2013 are expiring

on the following dates to offset the future taxable income:

22

BELEFRER -+~ KB(E)
RZZE—=Ff+=-A=+—H" ' &2
AR5 T8 2 B H) R R FE R B A
BEZBEENESE MZENE
ARMEBEBETEASEEEMHEA
AR ERTBMARE  ARUTAE
ERMOE AR REIBITER o HR
SEVE AT EERRERTLAD
BiE AR K4773000m(ZF — =
F 0 ARBE56,643,0007T ) FERIE IEFA
SHEEARKI032800T(=ZF
——&F: AR¥10589,0007T) e R
Z—=F+-A=+—HIEHREKE
R A K AR 47,730,000 TTHIE5 18
EREMBESHEIMT

Year ended 3| December

BEZ+=-H=t+—-H
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E-—-F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARBTT

Expiring in RUTFEERER
-2013 ——FT—=F — 10,175
-2014 ——T—mF 773 10,042
-2015 —-—E—h%F 12,225 12,489
-2016 —ZT—R%F 13,369 13,369
-2017 —ZE—+%F 10,568 10,568
-2018 -—ZE—-)\#F 10,795 —
47,730 56,643
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (CONTINUED) 22 BEERBHR-FEE(E)

As at 31 December 2013, deferred tax liabilities of RMB17,978,000 were R-E—=F+-A=+—H ' K

recognised for the withholding tax payable on the distributive profits amounting to NFRAERFERBRARAAARK

RMB 179,780,000 of the Company's subsidiaries in the PRC, which are intended to 179,780,000 7T K A] 2 I & 1 & 5 X

be distributed out from the PRC. NARERTETHBRABEARS
17,978,000 7T © &% 70 i ¥ #E 17 B 2%
SN ©

Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB87,436,000 (2012: RMB64,641,000) had not AR RN 5 A BB B A A8 A 29k

been recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on the distributable RE & A R #874362000 (= F

retained profits amounting to RMB874,362,000 (2012: RMB646,413,000) of the ——F: AR 646413,0007T ) & F

Company's subsidiaries in the PRC. The Group has no intension to distribute these HEHNBRELMEHABGBARE

retained eamings out from the subsidiaries in the PRC in the near future. 87436000L(ZE——F: AR

64,641,0007T) - AEBE B AW TTE
PRI R BB B AR D KA B

REBFH -
23 DEFERRED REVENUE (CURRENT) AND ADVANCES RECEIVED 23 BEWACRD)REWRE-FE
FROM CUSTOMERS - GROUP
As at 3|1 December
R+=A=+-8
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—F
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®BT ARBETT

Deferred revenue FEIERA
— Sales of water cards — SHEKIE 9,604 14718
— Government grant (Note 24) — BUR# B (5 24) 6,400 -
Advances received from customers TBUREFR 6,925 6923
22,929 21,641
As at 3| December 2013 and 2012, the Group's deferred revenue and advances R_ZB-—=FR=-ZZ—ZF+ZH
received from customers were all denominated in RMB. =+—B AEEMNBELTEKARKE

EPMBKRREEBAARKE -
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24 DEFERRED REVENUE (NON-CURRENT) - GROUP

24 BERAGERE) - AEE

As at 31 December

R+=RA=+-H

2013 2012

—E—=f —E——F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARBTTT

At beginning of year F4)) 12,308 11,267
Acquisition of a subsidiary (a), (Note 37) Yo i — R B 2 R (a) (FHEE37) 20,523 =
Addition NE 1,979 1,470
Credited to income statement I E (6,661) (429)
At end of year FXR 28,149 12,308
Less: current portion (Note 23) R ENER D (BT 23) (6,400) =
Non-current portion LR ) 21,749 12,308

(@  The amount represents the government grant received from the Tibet

Autonomous Government by Tiandi Green in relation to purchase of a

production line and low interest government loan.
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25 TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP 25 ENESN

As at 31 December

BW+=A=t+—H
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT
Trade payables ERNE SN 72,766 51,987
Notes payables IANESE — 6,543
72,766 58,530

As at 31 December 2013, the aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: RNZE—=F+-A=+—8 " EHN
BHRHRBRAITAT

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBEFTT
Within 45 days 45 HIAA 42,307 47752
Over 45 days but within 6 months @45 AT BRE6EA 23,477 8,050
Over 6 months but within | year BRcEABTEA F 5,326 2054
Over | year but within 2 years iR | FETBR2F 456 312
Over 2 years HBiB2FALE 1,200 362
72,766 58,530

RZBE—=FRk-_Z—Z-F+=A
=t+—B AEENENESRRE
NEEHUAARESEBEL TR o

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group's trade payables and notes payables

were all denominated in RMB and not interest bearing.
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26  ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY 26 BARBAREMENR-TRER
A
As at 3| December
Rt=A=+-H
Group Company
AEB D
2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-=f —T--Ff CZBE-=f —T-—F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARSTR ARET:R
Salary payables ERFHe 7,992 4,688 = =
Welfare payables FERERI 1,022 14 — —
Value added tax and other taxes payable FERIEEN R EMTE 2919 8,689 — —
Accrued expenses BRER 37,831 44641 — —
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTI B R R FIR — — 349,511 8511
Advance received from a third party (a) BKE=ZHFE () 28,000 16,200 = =
Payable for investment in an associate FERT RS AR A TR = 224,400 = =
Payable for acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 37) Le i) NG
FERS R (Bt 37) 51,000 — — -
Other payables HA R 15,427 9,862 8,030 4739
144,191 308,494 357,541 13250
(@)  This balance represents advance received from Lhasa Finance Bureau in () HEREFR_Z—=FK_-F
relation to the government grants which had not been approved by the —ZF+-A=+T—BEEBF
government as at 31 December 2013 and 2012. AR ER T E) - TAUR E
MM BURRFIR
The carrying amount of the accruals and other payables are denominated in EREARAEMENROREE
the following currencies: AT S E#E A
As at 3| December
Rt+t=A=t+—-H
Group Company
F5E EAH
2013 2012 2013 2012
“2-=f —ZT--f CZB-=f —T--f
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT AR®TRT ARETR
RMB ARE 138,843 304,451 357,541 12018
UsD X 4276 — — —
HKD BT 1,072 4043 — 1232
144,191 308,494 357,541 13250
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For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

27 BORROWINGS 27 B

As at 31 December

R+=A=t+-H
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBETTT

Current =3

Borrowing from government — unsecured B &R — KA 195,694 —

The borrowing was denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2013.

The borrowing was granted to Tiandi Green by the Tibet Autonomous government
through Tibet Autonomous Region Investment Company. Based on the agreement
between Tiandi Green and Tibet Autonomous Region Investment Company, the
borrowing with principal amount of RMB200,000,000 was unsecured and the term
of the borrowing is from | July 2009 to 30 June 2014. The interest rate from | July
2009 to 31 December 2011 was 3% per annum and nil interest for the remaining
periods. The borrowing was recorded initially at fair value and subsequently based
on the amortised cost using the effective interest rate at 4.76% per annum. The
difference between the fair value of the borrowing and the cost was recorded as

government grant and amortised over the term of the loan.

The Group had no undrawn borrowing facilities as at 31 December 2012 and
2013.

The carrying amount of current borrowing approximates its fair value.

R-F-=£+-A=+-0 &R
IARMHE -

&I BR BB R EEE
SRBIRERRARTFRUMGEE - BEX
WHREEARHBRREEAR ZEH
W& A& BEAAKE200000000
THERTEERE  BEFHRAZ
ZTNFELA-—HE-_T—MNEXLA
=+H-ZETNFtA-—HEZ-Z
——&+-A=Z+—BNEFNXAE
3% M THEMNERT - EFRNR
BAREEIE HENKAER

FE 476 LEHR AR - ERAR
BEEN A B Z R EBTHE
WA E FRHERRE T LA SS -

RZEBE——-FR-_ZFE—=F+=-A8
=+—B  AEBTEHRRRAOE
HEE -

EHERNEEEEEAABEMRS
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HE_Z-=H1+_A=t-BLFE

28 OTHER GAINS, NET

28

H At o 5 R

As at 3| December

R+=A=t+-H
2013 2012
—E-=f —T——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTTT

Government grants (a) BB () 155,862 100,959
Donation =B (60) (6,150)

Gain on remeasurement of previously held interests ~ E¥TatE 2 BIFF B KA €
of Tiandi Green (Note 12) Eme s (M5 12) 3,909 —
Others Hity 2 167
159,713 94976

(@) The amount mainly related to the government grant received by the Group

as follows:

) According to “BLBUH [1997]No. 24", "HFI 1 F [2010] No. 93" and “H
FBTEE T [2010] No. 29", the Group is eligible to receive subsidy income
from the local government in relation to the domestic subsidiaries’ fiscal
contribution to the local economic development as a major tax payer and
employer in Tibet. The Group recognised such income of approximately
RMB 117,534,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:
RMB100,959,000).

i) According to" W FBFEF [2012] No.101", the Group is also
eligible to receive such similar subsidy income after acquisition of
Tiandi Green. The Group recognised such income of approximately
RMB32,100,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil),
which represents the government grant income received subsequent
to 9 July 2013.
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(R F 20105935 | K[
BB 201015295 | » K&
BEAEARNEIZERT A RE
T BERESBERANBA
B 77 45 A B R (R L BT IS B B
R BT R BNRA - REBR
BE_Z—=Ff1+-A=t—H
HEEEROLERANAAR
#117,5340000(ZF — ZF :
AR 100,959,0007T) °

BB R BB F[2012]58 10
B R RIbRBE A&
B EERESERERFEIK
A AEEREBE_Z—=F
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HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

29  EXPENSES BY NATURE 29 REHASHEH
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses and AT AWMt AHERR - HE kD i
administrative expenses are analysed as follows: ERARTHERNER :

Year ended 3| December

BE+t-A=t—-HLFE

2013 2012
—E-—=F =g ——dE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARBTT

Raw materials and consumables used P FR IR 44 B RE A 163,405 86,721
Increase in the balances of inventories of finished
goods and work in progress EERK m MR 17 B A ERIE N (15,038) (2,858)
Transportation costs BRI 67,118 66,841
Depreciation of PP&E (Note 8) ME - BB LREITE (FHEE8) 36,054 20671
Employee benefit expenses (Note 30) EEBMEM (ME30) 53,295 42,649
Advertising and marketing expenditure EERTSHEER 38,128 24328
City construction tax and education surcharge WmERERHEWMNE 14,375 11,434
Electricity and other utility expenses BENRAEMEERER 6,084 3425
Rental expenses HeEA 2,352 2,73
Consulting and other service expenses R EA RS E A 17,506 16,830
Repair and maintenance B RRE 2,639 145
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 7) T+ fE AR B (Pt T 7) 364 29
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) BREESHE(MF) 10,490 B
Auditors’ remuneration ZERE e 4830 4,800
Exploration rights expenses RIEEE R 500 500
Office and consumption expenses MRNEFEER 12,034 11,410
Others Hit 2,976 7,406
417,112 298,062
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30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

30 EERFEHR

Year ended 3| December

BE+t-A=t—HLEFE
2013 2012
—E—=Ff —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Wages and salaries TERF® 45,880 37,850
Provision for medical and other employee benefits 58 [ EL Al /E B 12 FI 5 2,363 124
Contributions to defined contribution RERFTRARE
pension scheme (a) PRI () 3,452 2343
Contributions to the housing scheme (b) RIS (b) 1,600 1332
53,295 42,649
(@)  Pension scheme (@) RBUKEFE
The Group pays contributions to publicly administered pension insurance AEERRE ROELERARE
plans on a mandatory, contractual basis. The Group has no legal or BRRKSRIBETBIEL AR o
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not WZESWERHEELNAMEA
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee EERAPHELBTHEEHE
service in the current and prior periods. The contributions are recognised ERBASHEHN - REEIE
as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are E—SHREET TR ©
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the MNP R R 5 B R AR
future payments is available. X o A REARGERR 2
FERNAFBDHER T HER R
BE -
(b)  Housing scheme (b) EEFE

In accordance with the PRC housing reform regulations, the Group is
required to make contributions to the Chinese state-sponsored housing fund
at 10% of the salaries of the employees. At the same time, the employees
are also required to make a contribution at 10% of their salaries out of their
payroll. The employees are entitled to claim the entire sum of the fund

under certain specified withdrawal circumstances.
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30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 30 EERANERE)
(c)  Directors’ emoluments € EEMe

EBEEHE_T—=F+=-A8
=+ BIEFENHE

The remuneration of every director for the year ended 3| December 2013

is set out below:

I ¢

Employer’s

contribution to

Discretionary  pension scheme
Salary bonuses  fEEMBMRE Total
Name of Director BEEpng e BiETA B3 @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  AR®TR ARETR  ARETR
Mr. Yu Yiping, Wallace Clma it 1,297 — 12 1,309
Mr. Fu Lin BE bk 1022 = — 1022
Mr. Yue Zhigiang ity 1,022 - — 1,022
Ms. Mou Chunhua RRENT 393 = = 393
Mr. Liu Chen AR%E 717 = 12 729
Ms. Jiang Xiaohong ZRIAT 393 = = 393
Mr. Jesper Bjoemn Madsen vy it 377 — — 377
Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway FhEEE 377 = = 377
Mr. Wei Cheng, Kevin B E 3 - — Ey24
5975 = 24 5999
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30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 30 EERMNERAGE)
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set BREEHE_T——_FT+A=1—
out below: BIEFREHZFMESIDT :
Employer’s
contribution to

Discretionary  pension scheme

Salary bonuses  fEEMBHKE Total
Name of Director BEEng e miERa AR @t
RMB000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000

ARETR  AR®TR ARETR ARETR

Mr. Yu Yiping, Wallace a—Txk 1216 101 [ 1,328
Mr. Fu Lin fEL 1054 — — 1,054
Mr. Yue Zhigiang ity 1,054 - — 1,054
Ms. Mou Chunhua EEERL 405 — — 405
Mr. Liu Chen AR%E 584 43 [ 638
Ms. Jiang Xiaohong ZRIAT 405 — — 405
Mr. Jesper Bjoern Madsen v:2d it 143 — = 243
Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway FhEEE 243 — — 243
Mr. Wei Cheng, Kevin B E M43 — — M3
5447 144 2 5613
There was no remuneration, inducement fee, or compensation for loss of office to BE_T—=6R-_FT-—_F1+_H
directors during the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012. =+—BLEFE HEEMNEE £

BERESERMES -
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30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
(@)  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year include three (2012: three) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid and payable

to the remaining two (2012: two) individuals during the year are as follows:

30 EERNBEAE)
) DERBHFMAL

AEEAEERERSHFMAL
BREZE(CE—ZF: Z8)&
2 RENMESER LXHMZET
M DI RER - RERE N RERN
TEHRME(ZT—2F : BA)
ERIALOMESMT :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—HLFE

2013 2012
—_E—=F e
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTT

Basic salaries and allowances HEAH € K2R 2,062 2,042
Bonuses fE4L — 137

2,062 2,179
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e N FATEHE

Number of individuals

BERALEE
2013 2012
=tA==kE —E—4E
Emolument bands i< & &
1,000,001 7T ZE 1,500,000 8 7T
HKD1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000 (AR 800,001 TZE
(approximately RMB800,001 to RMBI,200,000) AR¥ 1,200,0007T) 2 2
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31 FINANCE INCOME, NET

31 BAESUWA - BEE

Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=+t—-HLHFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR AREF T
Foreign exchange gains/(losses), net X Was (8K) - F8 271 (636)
Interest cost on a borrowing from government B EE H B AR (4,408) —
Other finance costs Hi @i & (73) (113)
Finance costs HBER (4,210) (749)
Interest income B U A 24,427 31234
Finance income B A 24,427 31,234
Finance income, net BB - 20,217 30,485

32 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of income tax expense charged to the consolidated income statement

represents:

32 FiiSBiER

AT REMBRSANAEHER

Year ended 3| December

BET-RA=t—-HLEE

2013 2012

—E-=F el — e

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARBTT

Current income tax 2 HIFEH 89,049 87,609
Deferred income tax charge (Note 22) RIEFSTR X (M 22) 17,235 1,118
Income tax expense PR &R 106,284 98,727
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32 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 32 MEHER(E
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical A& E R PTEH AN # e IA
amount that would arise using the statutory tax rate as follows: BRIREREEREFESHNER

HEE o FHREMT

Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=+t—-HLHFE

2013 2012
—E—=F o — —GE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BT ARETT

Profit before income tax BR PS8 AR 567,199 509,449
Tax calculated at statutory tax rate of 25% BEFEME 5% 5 EMHIE 141,800 127,362
Preferential tax rates on income of ETEEBRBNBAMERH

certain group entities BERE (54,614) (58,438)
Tax of share of profit of an associate FEIEE = AR A HR IR (4,381) =
Tax on deemed sales BRRELENHE 2,204 —
Tax losses of certain group entities for which no W RERREEHEENE T

deferred income tax assets were recognised SEERNTERE 2,699 3615
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses A7 2R RERBL (4,918) —
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TRHIRE R 5,021 4,833
Effect of difference between preferential tax rate and ~ HERR IR E {18 £V 8 i 2K £

statutory tax rate on recognition of deferred tax EERERERNTE 495 4,095
Withholding tax from distribution of profits by B P B 2 R B A AT EE A D

the PRC subsidiaries Stk G 17,978 17,260
Income tax expense P& 106,284 98,727
The weighted average tax rate was 15.0% for the year ended 31 December 2013 BE_Z—=F+_A=+—BL#F
(2012: 15.0%). B EFORERIS0%(ZF—2

&1 15.0%) °

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Under current laws of the ARRARASHETMAL - RIEFA
Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital gains or other taxes SHERITER  ARAHETME
payable by the Company. The group entities established under the International RAEH - BES - REH  BXE
Business Companies Acts of the British Virgin Islands are exempted from British aREEMKIE  RERBRELHES
Virgin Islands income taxes. MEREBRARERINEEERE

REANERRLRBNREH -
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32

33

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The group entities incorporated in the PRC are subject to PRC enterprise income
tax. Four entities are located in the Tibet Autonomous Region of the PRC and
were entitled to preferential rate of 5% for the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: 15%); the remaining entities were taxed based on the statutory income tax
rate of 25% for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 25%) as determined in

accordance with the relevant PRC income tax rules and regulations.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during

the year.

Diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per share since the
Company has no potential dilutive ordinary shares during the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012.

32

33

FiERER (&

EREFMRINAEBEBAEZMN
HECEMGHR BEZT—=F
+TZA=T—HLEFE  MREUAF
BABESENEREXIS%(ZZ
—ZFIS%NERRE HHBRER
REE-_ZT—=F+=-A=+—AH1Lt
FERBEBORBMEH RN KRR
IR 2% EEMBEHRE(ZTE—Z
F 1 25%)EE -

BREF
EXREE

BRERBMNFTES AR - AAH
FEEANBEFANBRARFED %
TEBRHIIEFIE -

HRARBIREE - TE—=ZFN_F
—ZF+ A=+ BUEFEVEE
EEBELTBRE WEREERFET
REARRFBEE -

Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=t—-HLEE

2013 2012
—E—=F e — — i
Profit attributable to owners of ARAVER AEEFE
the Company (RMB'000) (ARBTT) 441,280 410,722
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BEITE R INETISH
in issue (thousands) (LAFET) 2,568,893 2,568,893
Eamings per share (basic and diluted) BREM(ERREE)
(RMB cents per share) (BRARED) 17.18 1599
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34 DIVIDENDS 34 RE
Dividend of HKD0.06 per share (amounting to HKD 154,134,000, equivalent —E-CERNBET 1=
to RMB122,752,000 based on the exchange rate at the payment date of such A=+—BLEFERERER006E
dividend) was declared and paid in 2013 in respect of the year ended 31 TC (¥ 154,134,000 7T - & AR Z &
December 2012 (2012: dividend of RMB62,976,000 was declared and paid in BUERNRBAMNEXRRENAR
2012 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011). A dividend in respect of ¥ 122752000 )(ZE—ZF : =
the year ended 3| December 2013 of HKD0.08 per share, which is equivalent to E-_ERNBE_T——F+=
a total dividend of approximately RMB 161,799,000, is proposed for approval at A=Z+-—BLEFERERARK
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the company to be held in 2014. These 62,976,0007T ) ° AN 1A & # 7 B #% 7£
financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable. —E-NERTHRRAFAE LR

BRRHE-_T-—=F+-F=1+—
BEFERERNSE  §KAB008
B ERARBREBLBOAEARE
161,799,000 7T ° Lt FE -1 A% B 3 K f= Bk
KA B |REA

The Company's subsidiaries will declare sufficient dividends to the Company to ARRHME AR RARR RS IRE

enable the Company to pay dividends to its shareholders to be proposed at the BERRSFEAR AR AZ A REN

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. FTORRBFASHRERIRENR
g\ o
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35 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 35 RETHFELENES

Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=+—-HLEFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Profit before income tax BR P AS A AT AR 567,199 509,449
Adjustments for : HE
Amortisation of intangible assets and land B EE R AEE

use rights (Note 29) (BI7E29) 10,854 29
Depreciation of PP&E (Note 29) ME - BB RRETE(PHEE29) 36,054 20671
Net foreign exchange gains (Note 31) B 5 s F RE (BT EE3 1) (271) 636
Deferred revenue charged to income statement SAMBRAEEBA (BT 24)

(Note 24) (6,661) (429)
Interest income FEUWA (24,427) (31,234
Share of profit of an associate (Note |2) FE1E— R & 2 Ala A (P EE 12) (17,525) —
Gain on remeasurement of previously held ERENMAFRBEARERZ

interest in an associate (Note 28) Yo g (P L 28) (3,909) —
Operating profit before working capital changes EEESREINEE R 561,314 499,122
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories BFEGEM /B (12,267) 7478
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables FEWE SR (Em) /md (76,843) 16,057
Decrease in prepayments and other receivables A IR B H A U FOR A 23,343 20,687
Decrease in pledged deposits REBRRD 6,543 14,277
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables ERESZCRL),/5m (22,462) 9,16l
(Decrease)/Increase in accruals and other payables TERE A K E AR

CR) /18 4121) 24235
Decrease in deferred revenue and advance EEWARREEFHTEK

received from customers RIER D (7,788) (19,699)

Cash generated from operations RETHMELENRE 467,719 571,318
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36

B

COMMITMENTS

(@)  Capital commitments

As at 3| December 2013 and 2012, the Group and the Company did not

have any material capital commitments.

(b)  Operating lease commitments

The Group leases offices and plant under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases were as follows:

(@) BARMEE

RIE—=FR-_T——F+=
AZ+—8  A&EEKAARL
B EBREAMAGE -

(b) REHEHRE
REBRE A BUB & E 4
HRABRAENEE - U TR A
B EHEE THARRKER
TR

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-H
2013 2012
—_E—=F —ET——fF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBETT

No later than | year | F AR 2,456 1,871
Later than | year and no later than 5 years | E5E 5912 658
8,368 2,529
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 37 XBast

On 25 December 2012, the Group acquired 35% of the equity interests of Tiandi
Green for RMB 595,000,000 (Note 12). On 9 July 2013, the Group acquired a
further 30% of the equity interests in Tiandi Green and obtained control over

Tiandi Green since that date.

The goodwill of RMB 721,139,000 arising from the acquisition is attributable to
acquired customer base and economies of scale expected from combining the
operations of the Group and Tiandi Green. None of the goodwill recognised is

expected to be deductible for income tax purpose.

R-ZZE——%+-_A=-+AB A&
B LA A R ¥ 595,000,000 7T U B K 3 A%
BI%RIEHET12) RZE—=F
+ANA  AEEE - TREXRDLE
B 30% I A 72 B RRIRIGH R4
BRI I o

WEEFTE £ B AR 721,139,000 7T K
BEDNRRNERTEFERBHEA
AMAEERR MG ENERMESL
MRENE BRSACRRANEE
ATHRET R o
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37 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

The following table summarises the consideration paid for the acquisition of a
controlling stake in Tiandi Green, the fair value of assets acquired, liabilities assumed

and the non-controlling interest as at the acquisition date on 9 July 201 3.

37 EBaftE)
TERBLAR -—"Z—=FtANLBEHK
AR E R e R S
HRE  MKBEENAARBE: AT
EEEERIEERES

Consideration: RE: RMB’000
ARBT T
— Cash -RE 510,000
Including: cash paid B BNRE 459,000
cash payable AN 51,000

— Fair value of previously held interest in Tiandi Green - BERKUEE BT
~AEE 605,500
Total consideration HRE [,115,500

There is no contingent consideration or other form of future payments under this

EZZHAE T BESAAREREMT

arrangement. MRS o
Amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed BB B E R AR RMB’000
RENSE ARBT T
Cash and cash equivalents RelkBRe%EEY 205,386
Land use rights (Note 7) T e AR (M 7) 31,990
Property, plant and equipment (Note 8) ER G ACEE) 417926
Intangibles (Note 9) mR AR (f3E9) 209,300
Inventories & 27,245
Trade and other receivables FEUS B 5550 B HoAh e LUK 70,601
Trade and other payables R & SRR EAM B R (40,872)
Advances received from customers AW E PR (2,676)
Deferred income (Note 24) R W as (PR 24) (20,523)
Borrowings EEN (241,287)
Enterprise income tax payable R (REMEH (13.827)
Salary and wage payables EREHERTE (2411)
Other current liabilities Hiwng B e (310)
Deferred tax liabilities, net (Note 22) EEBIRAE - FRE(MEE2) (33833)
Total identifiable net assets AR FEEAH 606,709
Non-controlling interest RS (212,348)
Goodwill (Note 10) EEGEA) 721,139
[,115500
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37

R =t A=+—HILEE

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the non-controlling interest in Tiandi Green, an unlisted company,
was estimated using proportionate share of the fair value of the identifiable net

assets of Tiandi Green.

The Group recognised a gain of RMB 3,909,000 as a result of remeasurement
of its previously held 35% equity interests in Tiandi Green upon the acquisition
of additional 30% equity interests in July 2013. The gain is included in “other
gains, net” in the Group's consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2013.

Acquisition-related costs of RMB 7,555,000 have been charged to administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December
2013.

The revenue included in the consolidated income statement since 9 July 2013
contributed by Tiandi Green was RMB 142,893,000. Tiandi Green also contributed
profit of RMB 56,100,000 over the same period.

Had Tiandi Green been consolidated from | January 2013, the consolidated income
statement would show pro-forma revenue of RMB951, 455,000 and profit of RMB
510,987,000.
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38 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are

also considered to be related if they are subject to common control.

The Group is ultimately controlled by Mr. Wang Peter Jian (the “"Controlling
Shareholder").

(@)  Transactions with related parties:

BELIRS

Bl —RIERE RS S — TR B AR
BREERRBMEAZENOAL -
HFEHIERITRE AR -

AEBRTRAE(ERRR &K
2

(@) ERBAINRS:

Year ended 3| December

BE+t-A=t—HLFE

2013 2012
—_E—=F sl —
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTT

Revenue from license fee (i) R e RIS ()

— Entities under common control —XE—EHNER

Purchase of goods (ii) REEEW) (i)

— Entities under common control —XA—EHNER

Lease expenses (i) MEE M (iii)

— An entity controlled by Mr. Yu Yiping Wallace, — X AN B E a1 —F &
the Chairman of the Group Tl E

40 8l
446 635
351 292

(i) Revenue from license fee was the royalty fee charged to an entity
controlled by the Controlling Shareholder based on agreed terms

between both parties.

(i) Goods were bought from an entity controlled by the Controlling

Shareholder based on agreed terms between both parties.

(ily  Lease expenses were from the leasing fee of vehicle from an entity
controlled by the Chairman of the Group based on agreed terms

between both parties.

@ TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD. ® &5 1007k & R 1R B IR 2 &

() BAREREKEIREE
73 B0 165 TE 1K ) R 2 P
RIEHMEREUR -

(i BEVRBREENNHER
SRR iR B R O B 28
R -

(i HEERRBERENREE
ETNBEGRTAAREE
FRERNERNTEMR
E% .



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER T

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HE_Z-=H1+_RA=t-HILFE

38

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)  Balances with related parties:

The Group had no material balance with related parties as at 31 December
2013 and 3| December 2012.

(c) Key management compensation:

The compensation paid/payable to key management is shown below:

38
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Year ended 3| December

BET-A=t—-HLEE

2013 2012
—E-=F “E——fF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARBETT

Salaries and other short-term HehEMRH
employee benefits EEREN

8,061 7959
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HEBEE

For the year ended 3| December

BET-A=t—-HLEE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
ZB-=f —T——F ZT——F ZT-FTF _TTNEF
Profitability data (RMB million) BEFEE
(AR®BET)

Revenue Wz 787 682 633 361 216
Gross profit EM 576 555 499 232 124
Operating profit 1T 529 479 44| 135 55
Profit for the year FEAE 461 411 373 15 47
Profitability data (%) BABUR (%)
Gross profit margin ERNE 73% 81% 79% 64% 58%
Operating profit margin REMEE 67% 70% 70% 37% 25%
Net profit margin A= 59% 60% 59% 32% 22%
Retum on average total TR AR R K

shareholders’ equity 17% 19% 20% 41% 29%
Assets and liabilities data EEHEBEYE

(RMB million) (AR®BET)
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,661 915 301 302 251
Current assets mEEE 1,596 1,729 1,736 158 162
Current liabilities nEBEE 455 412 6l 165 177
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 72 30 2 12 70
Equity attributable to owners ARAVER NEEER

of the Company 2,497 2,202 1,854 283 165
Assets and Working Capital data EENRBESHE
Current assets ratios MENEELLE 49% 65% 85% 34% 39%
Gearing ratios BRBELX 6.69% — _ _x 3%+
Note: B &E

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

The financial information for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 was extracted from the

Prospectus.

& Restated
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